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Re: 	 In re: Application of Americatel Corporation for Authority to Provide 
Alternative Local Exchange Service ·Within the State of Florida 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing are the original and six (6) copies of Americatel 
Corporation's Application for Authority to Provide Alternative Local Exchange 
Service Within the State of Florida. We have also enclosed our firm check in the 
amount of $250.00 for the filing fee. 

For our records , please acknowledge your receipt of this filing on the 
enclosed copy of this letter. Thank you for your consideration. 

. with filing and (ofWarded 
Check receIVed stt. Fiscel to fo(WaId Sincerely,to Fiscal for dePO to ReooniS­
deposit Infot'TtlatiOn 
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cc: 	 Veronika Foster 
Denisse Becerra 
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-. '. ** FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ** 

DIVISION OF COMPETITIVE MARKETS AND ENFORCEMENT 
CERT1 F I CAT1 0 N 

APPLICATION FORM 
for 

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE 
ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 

WITHIN THE STATE Of FLORIDA 

Instructions 

This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of 
the assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of an 
assignment or transfer, the information provided shall be for the assignee or 
transferee (See Page 12). 

0 Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application and 
appendices. If an item is not applicable, please explain why. 

0 Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a 
non-refundable application fee of $250.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 41 3-6770 

0 If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Competitive Markets and Enforcement 
Certification 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 41 3-6600 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (I 1/95) 
Required by Coinmission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24 810, and 25-24.81 5 



AP PLICATION 

I. This is an application for / (check one): 

( X ) Original certificate (new company). 

( ) Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated . 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original- 
certificate of authority. 

( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate: Example, a certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the certificate 
of authority of that company. 

( ) Approval of transfer of control: Example, a company purchases 51% of a 
certificated company. The Commission must approve the  new controlling 
entity. 

2. Name of company: 

Americatel Corporation 

3. Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

NIA 

4. Official mailing address (including street name 81 number, post office box, city, 
state, zip code): 

4045 N.W. 97th Avenue 
Miami, Florida 331 78 

2 FORM PSCICMU 8 (I 1/95) 
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5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, 
zip code): 

4045 N.W. 97th Avenue 
Miami, Florida 331 78 

6. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual 
( X ) Foreign Corporation 
( ) General Partnership 
( )Other 

( ) Corporation 
( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) Limited Partnership 

7. If individual, provide: 

Name: N.A 

Title: 

Address: 

C it y/S t a t e1Zi p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

1 n ternet E- Ma i I  Address : 

Internet Website Address: 

8. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

NIA 

3 FORM PSCKMU 8 (I 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
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9. If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

See  Attached E x h i b i t  ' ' A "  P39482 

I O .  If using fictitious name-dlbla, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 
NIA 

f l .  If a limited liability partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in 
Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State registration number: 

NIA 

q2. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of 
the partnership agreement. 

Name: N/A 

Title: 

Add ress : 

C it y/S t a t e/Z i p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

I ntern et E-M a i I Address: 

I n t e r n e t Webs i te Add res s : 

A3. If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.1 69, FS), if applicable. 

(a) The Florida registration number: 

14. Provide F.E.I. Number(if applicable): 06-1 344625 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (11/95) 4 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
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15. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of any 
crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. Provide 
explanation. 

None 

(b) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no longer 
associated with company, give reason why not. 

They have not. They have only been associated with Americatel Corporation, 
which is currently certificated by the Florida Public Service Commission as an 
interexchange company. Its certificate number is 531 3. 

16. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Name: Karen D. Walker 
Title: 
Add ress : 
City/State/Zip: Tallahassee, Florida 3230 A 
Telephone No.: (850) 425-5612 Fax No.: (850) 224-8832 
Internet E-Mail Address: 
Internet Website Address: www.hklaw.com 

Attornev - Holland & Knight LLP 
316 South Calhoun Street, Suite 600 

ka ren .wal ker@ h klaw. com 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (7 1/95) 5 
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(b) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 

Name: Jorqe Asecio 
Title: CEO 
Address: 4045 NW 97'h Ave. 
City/State/Zip: Miami, FL 331 78 
Telephone No.: 305-71 7-0200; Fax No.: 305-71 6-8833 

Internet E-Mail Address: jasecio@americatel. net 
I nternet We bsite Address: www. ainericatel .net 

(c) Co m p I ai n t s/l n q u i r i es from cu s to m e rs : 

Name: Matias Arentsen 

Title: VP Marketing, Sales and Customer Service 

Address: 4045 NW 97'h Ave. 
CitylStatelZip: Miami, FL 331 78 

Telephone No.: 305-71 7-0340; Fax No.: 305-994-7294 

Internet E-Mail Address: marentsenaamericatel .net 
I n t e r n e t Webs i te Ad d ress ; ww w . a m e r i ca te I. net 

47. List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as an alternative local exchange company. 

None at present. 

(b) has applications pending to be certificated as an alternative local exchange 
company. 

None at present; however, similar applications for certification will be filed in 
multiple jurisdictions within the Continental United States. 

(c) is certificated to operate as an alternative local exchange company. 

None at present. 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as an alternative local exchange 
company and the circumstances involved. 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (I  1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 
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None. 

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 

None. 

(f) has been  involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, 
local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the 
ci rcu m s t a n ces i nvo lved . 

None. 

18. Submit the following: 

A. Managerial capability: give resumes of employeeslofficers of the 
company that would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each. 

See  Attached Exhibit r ' B "  

6. Technical capability: give resumes of employeeslofficers of the company 
that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what 
company has been contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 

S e e  A t t a c h e d  Exhibit "C" 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 7 
Required by Commission Rule Nos 25-24 805, 
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C. Financial capability. 

The application should contain the applicant's audited financial statements for the 
most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it 
shall so be stated. 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the financial statements 
are true and correct and should include: 

See A t t a c h e d  Exhibit ''D" 
1. t he  balance sheet: 

2. income statement: and 

3. statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a 
projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reporfs, and 
descriptions of business relationships with financial institutions. 

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be 
provided: See A t t a c h e d  Exhibit ' ' E "  

1. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 

2.  written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
maintain the requested service. 

3. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

S FORM PSClCMU 8 (11/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24 805, 
25-24 810, and 25-24.815 



THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT 

I. REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies 
must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of .I 5 of one percent of gross 
operating revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross 
operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is 
required. 

2. APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of $250.00 
must be submitted with the application. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

ALaCQQ 
Print Name 

Title Date 

5 ~ 5  ?\>0293 J& 716 gg33 
Telephone No. Fax No. 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (11195) 9 
Required by Commission Rule Nos 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24 81 5 



THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the 
information contained in this application and attached documents and that the  
applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capabilityto 
provide alternative local exchange company service in the State of Florida. I have 
read the foregoing and declare that, to the  best of my knowledge and belief, the 
information is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of 
my company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable 
Commission rules and orders. 

Further, t am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, 
"Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to 
mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guiity 
of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 
and s. 775.083." 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

J O w k  P + d Q  . -  
Print Name +--- 

Date 
L@ 

Title 

Telephone No. Fax No. 

10 FORM PSClCMU 8 (I  1/95) 
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INTRASTATE NETWORK (if available) 

Cha ter 25-24.825 (5), Florida Administrative Code, requires the company to make 
avai P able to staff the alternative local exchange service areas only upon request. N / A  

I. POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased. 

2. SWITCHES: Address where located, by type of switch, and indicate if 
owned or leased. 

3) 4) 

3. TRANSMlSSlON FACILITIES: POP-to-POP facilities by type of facilities 
(microwave, fiber, copper, satellite, etc.) and indicate if owned or leased. 

PO P-to-PO P OWNERSHIP 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (I 1/95) 11 Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24 805, 
25-24.81 0,  and 25-24.81 5 



CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 

. -  of (Name of Company) 
I ,  (Name) 
(Title) 

and current holder of Florida Public Service Commission Certificate Number # 

a: 
, have reviewed this application and join in the petitioner's request for 

( ) sale 

( )transfer 

( ) assignment 

of the above-mentioned certificate. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Print Name 

'Title 

I elephone No. 

Address: 

Signature 

Date 

Fax No. 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (I 1/95) 12 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



I certify from the records of this office that AMERICATEL CORPORATION, is a 
corporation organized under the laws of Delaware, authorized to transact 
business in the  State of Florida, qualified on June 26, 1992. 

The document number of this corporation is P39482. 

I further certify that said corporation has paid all fees due this office through 
December 31, 2003, that its most recent annual reporthniform business report 
was filed on May 5, 2003, and its status is active. 

I further certify that said corporation has not filed a Certificate of Withdrawal. 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal of the State of Florida 

at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the 
Twenty-seventh day of October, 2003 



Jorge Antonio Asecio 
Chief Executive Officer 
Americatel 

Mr. Asecio is the Chief Executive Officer for Americatel, based in Miami, Florida. 

Prior to joining Americatel, Mr. Asecio was initially CEO of Entelfonica and later 
Public Services Vice President at- ENTEL-Chile. He managed the company’s 
massive products line and supervised marketing, budget figures, and customer 
service procedures. 

Prior to Entel, Mr. Asecio worked for VTR Telecomunicaciones S.A., in Chile as 
Sales Vice President and later as Marketing Vice President. 

Mr. Asecio worked for the Chilean government as Under Secretary of Economy for 
several years. His experience also includes his work as Marketing Vice President 
and Investment Vice President for the AFP Proteccion S.A. 

Throughout his career he has served as chairman of the Board of Directors for 
several organizations including Entel Inversiones, S.A., Transaxion S.A and 
member of the Board of director for Entel PCS Telecomunicaciones S.A. 

He was also a member of the Board of Directors for lsapre Ferrosalud, Cotrisa 
S.A., IANSA, ESVAL, FF. CC. S.A. and COFOMAP S.A. 

Other organizations he is involved in are the Merchant Marine Commission, the 
Forestall Investment Committee, the Antimonopoly Prevention Commission and the 
Privatization Committee. 

He was professor for €he Universidad de Concepcion, Universidad de Chile and 
Universidad Finis Terrae teaching Finance, Economy, and Social Science courses. 
He graduated in 1980 from the University of Concepcion with a Bachelor degree in 
Business Administration and Economy and in 1982 with a Minor degree in 
Administration. He also completed Economy Course at the lnternational Monetary 
Fund in Washington, D.C. 

He received the Award of Excellence 2002 USA from the magazine America 
Economia. 

### 



Alejan d ro Va rg as 
lnternational Corporate Chief legal Officer 
EnteI-C h ile 

Executive Vice President and Corporate Chief Legal Officer 
Americatel 

As International Corporate Chief Legal -Officer for Entel-Chile, Aiejandro Vargas is 
responsible for all international legal and corporate matters of Entel-Chile, the 
legal and corporate control of all international subsidiaries and the seats held at 
present in the Boards of Directors of the International affiliates of Entel-Chile. 

Mr. Vargas is also Executive Vice President and Corporate Chief Legal Officer 
for Americatel and is responsible for all strategic legal and corporate matters of 
Americatel and other matters as Secretary of the Board. 

Prior to joining Americatel, Mr. Vargas was Senior Counsel - International Legal 
Department for Entel, in Chile, where he was responsible for the incorporation and 
acquisition of all foreign subsidiaries of Entel. He had legal control and supervision 
of foreign subsidiaries of Entel; and development and legal control of international 
projects of Entel-Chile S.A. in North America, Central America, South America and 
E u ro pe . 

Throughout his career he has served as member of the Board of Director for the 
following foreign subsidiaries and affiliates of Entel: Americatel Corporation (USA), 
Americatel Colombia, S.A. (Colombia), Americatel Peru, SA .  (Peru), Entel Mexico 
S.A. de C.V. (Mexico), Zetacom de Centro America S.A. (Panama), Telepuerto de 
Guatemala 90 SA.  (Guatemala), Telepuerto Hondureno S A .  (Honduras), and 
Telepuerto Salvadoreno S.A. de C.V. (El Salvador). He has also served as 
Secretary of the Board in the remaining foreign subsidiaries of Entel. 

Throughout his career Mr. Vargas participated in several courses and/or seminars 
including “Investment Projects Evaluation and Company Valuation, NPV and IRR” 
at the Catholic University of Chile; “Doing Business with Brazil” at the American 
Conference Institute, New York, NY; and “Negotiation” at Harvard University. 

He was Assistant Professor for the Catholic University of Chile and Andres Bello 
University. Mr. Vargas has taught History and Economy of Law and General 
Principles of Law. 

Mr. Vargas graduated in 1987 from the Catholic University of Chile with a taw 
Deg ree . 

### 



Denisse M. Becerra 
Vice President of  Legal Affairs 
Americatel 

Denisse Becerra is Vice President of Legal Affairs for Americatel, where she is 
responsible for protecting the company’s legal and regulatory interests and 
maintaining its operations within the scope established by law. 

Prior to joining Americatel, in I999 Ms. Becerra was a Foreign Law Specialist for 
the firm Swidler Berlin Shereff Friedman, LLP in Washington, D.C. She 
represented US. and international telecommunications companies in Latin America 
and Europe 

Previously Ms. Becerra worked for The lnteramerican Investment Corporation of 
the InterAmerican Development Bank in Washington, D.C. as a consultant, 
assisting investment officers in the negotiations of investments in private equity 
funds, direct and financial intermediary liaison, agency lines and equity investment, 
among other things. 

Ms. Becerra has worked for the World Bank as an External International 
Consultant, specializing in privatizations, project finance and foreign direct 
investment. 

From 1996 to 2000, Ms. Becerra was Managing Partner for the law firm Becerra, 
Ortiz & Zegarra, in Lima, Peru. She represented multinational and Peruvian 
companies in a wide range of transactions, including Project Finance, Foreign 
Investment and venture capitals. 

She is author of the study “Municipal Privatization in Peru”, The George 
Washington University Law School, Washington, D.C.; and Co-author of the study 
“El Boom de las Privatizaciones”, edited and published by the Universidad de Lima, 
Peru. Editor and member of the Executive Council of the magazine AGORA: 
Economia y Actualidad, Lima, Peru. 

I 

Ms. Becerra completed in 1990 seminars in International Business and Politics in 
Latin America from Georgetown University Law School. She graduated in 1994 
from the University of Lima with a Juris Doctor degree and a Bachelor degree in 
Political Science. She also completed a Master of Laws at The George 
Washington University Law School in +I 999. 

### 



Daniel Escudero 
Vice President of M/S 
America te I 

Daniel Escudero is Vice President of M.I.S. for Americatel, where he is responsible 
for overseeing the implementation of all the hardware and software platforms,: 
which are used to manage the operation of the services that Americatel provides. 
He is also responsible for troubleshooting, operations and maintenance of 
Ame ricatel’s software app I ka t  ions and computer platforms . 

Prior to joininig Americatel, in 2000 Mr. Escudero was a Country Manager for Chile 
at Guby Networks. He was responsible for the complete Chilean operation on 
w. bruiula.cl, Chile’s main search engine. 

Previous to Guby Networks, Mr. Escudero worked for CMET Telephone Company, 
as ISP Director, responsible for all aspects of the  creation and operation of the ISP 
Division and as Acting CTO to the Board of Directors. 

Mr. Escudero worked far Adexus (formerly TANDEM Chile) in I991 as a Sales 
Manager for Telefonica and later as a Sales Manager - Unix Division. 

In 1989 Mr. Escudero was Corporate Project Manager for Computerland, 
responsible for Sales and Engineering of corporate accounts, which included 
banks, telecommunications, mining and heavy machinery companies. 

From I985 to A989 Mr. Escudero was the Software Manager for Prime Computers 
Chile, responsible for Operating Systems and Application Development for over 40 
prime installations in Chile. 

Throughout his career, Mr. Escudero participated in several technical seminars with 
American corporations such as: Bristol Babcock, Prime Computers, Lundy 
Electronics, Novell, Compaq, MIS, Tandem and SUN. Other courses include 
various strategic sales, marketing and negotiation seminars with t BM, Tandem 
Computers and Sun Microsystems. 

Mr. Escudero graduated in 1986 from the Universidad de Santiago de Chile with a 
Bachetor degree in Computer Science. 

### 



Jose Vicente Navarro 
Vice President - Long Distance and lnfernef Sewices 
Americatel 

As Vice President of Long Distance and Internet Services for Americatel, Jose 
Vicente Navarro is responsible for the technical and logistical aspects of the long- 
distance service. He is also responsible for strategy and commercial planning as 
well as product management and international carrier relations. 

Mr. Navarro oversees the strategic combination of contracts with other long 
distance carriers, in order to provide Americatel customers with the highest quality 
of telecommunications services in each geographical market. 

Prior to joining Americatel, Mr. Navarro was Director of Public Products for Entel, in 
Chile, where he was responsible for the development, control and maintenance of 
110 long distance call centers and 30 customer service centers throughout Chile. 

Before Entel, Mr. Navarro worked for VTR Telecommunications, also in Chile. First 
as a Manager, later as Products Vice President, Mr. Navarro was an analyst for the 
planning, reporting and control departments, developing strategy and commercial 
plans for international long distance projects. He is credited with the commercial 
implementation of international private line services and the commercial 
development of IBS services, credit and prepaid phone card and domestic as well 
as international long distance services. 

MI-. Navarro also worked for the University of Chile as Assistant Operations 
Management Professor in the Industrial Civil Engineering Department and as 
Assistant Calculus Professor at the College of Civil Engineering. 

Mr. Navarro graduated in 1991 from the University of Chile with Highest Honors in 
Industrial Civil Engineering. 



Matias Arentsen Peha 
Vice President of Marketing, Sales and Cusfomer Sewice 
Am erica tel 

Mr. Arentsen coordinates all marketing and communications efforts for 
Americatel. 

An Entel executive since 1993, he held several positions in the company’s 
Marketing Department including Marketing Research Manager and, until recently, 
Advertising and Promotions Manager. He was responsible for the development 
and implementation of successful marketing campaigns for services such as the 
123 Code, Calling Cards, Pre-paid Cards, Internet, Collect and Business 
Services, among others which earned him the “Premio ENTEL 1995,” awarded 
for quality employee work. 

Throughout his career Mr. Arentsen participated in several seminars including a 
Business Administration Seminar at the University of Adolfo I baiiez, a “Marketing 
1994” Seminar at The Wharton School, the University of Pennsylvania, and a 
Direct Marketing Seminar at the University of Chile. He has also been invited 
several times to give lectures at seminars and university discussions. 

Mr. Arentsen graduated in I992 from the Universidad Adolfo IbiiRez, Business 
School of Valparaiso, with a Bachelors degree in Business Administration and a 
degree in Commercialization. 

### 



Roberto Oyarzun 
Vice President, Engin e e ring an d Op era fions 
Am e ricatel 

Roberto Oyarzun has ten years of experience as Vice President of Engineering 
and Operations for Americatel, where he has been responsible for building up 
and managing a telecommunications network with nationwide coverage and 
worldwide access to initially support- Business services (VSAT, IBS, Internet 
access) between US and Latin America and the Caribbean Region, and then 
retail services (dial around, PIC, Prepaid, ISP) oriented to the Hispanic market in 
the US. 

Before joining Americatel in 1993, Mr. Oyarzun worked for the parent company 
Entel-Chile, the largest long distance carrier in Chile, and a pioneer in the 
privatization of Latin America’s telecommunications industry. As E-ntel’s 
Southern Regional Manager, Mr. Oyarzun managed the two most southern 
regions of Chile, where he was responsible for sales, installation, operation and 
maintenance of the telecommunication services. 

Mr. Oyarzun graduated from the Federico Santa Maria University in Valparaiso 
Chile, with both a Bachelor of Science and a Master’s degree in Electrical 
Engineering. 

### 



Juan Guillermo Ducaud 
Vice President, Finance and Administration 
Am erica te 1 

As Vice President of Finance and Administration, Juan Guillermo Ducaud is 
responsible for the financial management, accounting, human resources and 
administration issues of Americatef . 

Prior to joining Americatel, Mr. Ducaud was Vice President of Finance and 
Administration for Ogden Services Corporation, where he set up and organized the 
finance department for the Latin American expansion of the company operating in 
the fields of aviation, entertainment, energy, and waste water treatment, with 
responsibilities in the areas of Accounting, Cash Management, Budgeting, Auditing 
and Controls, Legal and Taxation aspects, Credit and Collection procedures, Labor 
and Labor union issues. 

Before Ogden, Mr. Navarro worked for Ladeco Airlines, as Vice President of 
Finance for North and Central America and the Orient, responsible for analyzing 
operations and negotiations, which conduced to a reduction of 1896 of the area 
operating costs. Also supervised the  sales and marketing function, aircraft and 
ground functions as well as the complete operation of the carrier in the territories. 

Mr. Ducaud also worked for Seaboard Corporation, Produce and Seafood Division 
as Comptroller, where he organized and setup operations in several Central 
American countries with responsibilities including training, procedures 
development, cash management, reporting and consolidating, project acquisition 
evaluations, budgeting, and electronic data processing. 

As Assistant Vice President at International Bankers Insurance Company, Mr. 
Ducaud created, organized and headed the accounting, finance and personnel 
department of a state level property and casualty insurance and premium finance 
corn pan ies. 

Mr. Ducaud graduated in 4986 from Florida International University with a Bachelor 
degree in Business Administration, Finance. 

### 



AMERXCATEL CORPORATION 
Application for a Certificate of Public Convenience 

and Necessity to Operate Public Utility Sefvice 

EXHIBIT C 

STATEMENT OF TECHNICAL CAPABILITY 

Americatel Corporation hereby submits the following statement demonstrating its 
technical capability: 

Arnericatel’s engineering and technical staff is under the leadership of Roberto 
Oyarzun, Vice President, Engineering and Operations, with a ten-year tenure in that 
position. Mr. Oyarzun has been responsible for building up and managing a 
telecominunications network with nationwide coverage and woi-ldwide access to initially 
support Business services (VSAT, BS ,  Internet access) between US and Latin America 
and the Caribbean Region, and then retail services (dial around, PIC, Prepaid, ISP) 
oriented to the Hispanic market in the US. Mr. Oyarzun has more than twenty-five years 
of telecommunications industry experience. 

Mr. Oyarzun’s engineering staff consists of about 20 engineers and technicians 
plus support staff with many years of experience in telecommunications. This group has 
substantial expertise in areas of systems design and operations for both private networks 
and public telephony. 

Arnexicatel’s teleport in Miami was constiucted in 1994 at a cost of severa1 
million dollars. hi addition to serving as the company’s corporate office headquarters, 
this facility includes three primary satellite earth station antennas (one 15.5 meter and 
two 9.3 meter dishes). Additionally, Americatel has leased substantial capacity for 
telephony traffic between the U.S. and Central and South America via submarine cables. 
The teleport provides direct satellite and fiber access to more than 25 countries 
throughout Latin America and the Caribbean. Additionally, Americatel owns an 
intemational telephony switch, which is located in New York City to take advantage of 
the proximity of the facilities of most major telecommunications companies in the U.S. 

Americatel’s MIS Department is spearheaded by Daniel Escudero, Vice Presideizt 
of MIS, who, with 18 years of experience, is responsible for overseeing the 
implementation of all the hardware and software platforms relating to automated systems, 
electronic management of customer databases, electronic aspects of the billing functions 
and other responsibilities that are cnicial for the provision of Americatel’s services in 
today’s competitive and technologically progressive world. The MIS department counts 
with a staff of 22 experienced professionals, teclxiicians and other support staff. 





Annual Report 2002 h Americatel 



By any measure, Americatel's® performance over Its sho 
nistory 'eserves an "A"-the soli grade of a leader in the 
intensely competitive field of telecommunications an Its 
hotly contested Hispanic market 

TIle goal is now al l A+ to be "At the top of the class". 

Americatel's® goal is to reak away from tne pack. To go 
from being among the lea ers to bein the leader. Its mission 
is to be the number one company for the Hispanic market in 
the Unit d States. 

Americatel's® S, arkling track record makes it a Dod bet to 
cross tile finish line fir I. Over only five years , Amenca el as 
, ee me the most recognized long distanCe company an 
ISP provider among Hispanics in the United Stales, It is 
among the to 10 U.S.-based carriers for international long­

ista ce minutes, ~nd ne of the largest b akers of 
wholesale inL.es in the wo Id. 

Start wrth quality. Thousands of satisfied customers who use 
Americalel's® flagship 101 0-123™ dial -around seNice an 
Prepai Calling Card shifted to Subscribed Services In 
2002, ' osting the client ase by 32 perce j Whether 
catling a elalive anywhere ill Lali Amenca or e-mallin a son 
or daughter away at college, customers wanl permanent 
access to Americatel's@ clear and rapid connections and 
top-notcll , bilingual service, 

Move to efficiency. During the economic downturn In 2002, 
Americatel@ increased its operatlo al i ~come by 
emphasizing profitabili ty over growth and effectively 
consoli a Ing its operati ns. 

Ad creativity. Americatel@ co tinually introduces new long­
dista'lce p oducts and services, Througll its Rest of the 
Wo Plan , Ameri atel 's® great rates are now availa Ie to 
c II across the globe. A ericatel's® dazzlln 123com™ 
portal offers discounts rates ana constant y pdate 
features that have made il one of the mo t preferred Intemet 
home pages among U.S. Hisvnics, 



Intloduct on ~Americatel 

Efficiency, uallty an creativity add JP to the leadership that 
will pro el Amencatel® rrom a A to a I A+ . America el® Ilas 

the tech ology, the in .rastruclure , the ex erisnce, the 

ersonnel , the c lie t base an above ail , tr e strenglll of 
convi tlon, to be the best rovlder of telecommuni ~ io s 

se i es for U.S . Hispanics-the community where 

Arnericatet® comes from, lilat I knows, and v"hich rt serves 

every ay. 

Americatet® also has shown its bili ty to ad pt to change­

th o i ly cons t II I 10' ay's world of shifting global mar kets 
an crossing cultures . It's no wonder that Amencatel® 

eceived Il,e "2002 Excellence Award" trom America 
Economia magazine f r innovation and intemationalizCllion 

And it 's not 811 al,o t business-Americatel® enefils lronl a 

corporate image of social responsibility that lIas w n the 
hearts 01 millions of Hispanics. The company's donation. of 

00 numbers and other pu Ilc seNice contrrbutions h ve 
heiped 111111ions r people with immigration nd ecluca1ion 
, sues that affect their daily lives. 

Americ tel® do sn'\ need to cal l meetings on how to 

penetrate the Hispanic mar1<el. Tl1ey are already here-U.S. 

His anlcs already know Americatel® as well as they k'loW its 

pokesperson , TV oersonali y anrf philanthronist DOll 

Francisco 

It all adds 1I to tlis our people, our time, our future. 

Americatel® is ahead of the urve ir' meeting the 
telee mmunicallor, l1eeejs of U .S. HlspaIlK;s. Yet tl'1e 
company will rleed <.III it assets an more matctl strides 

ilh its growin and dynamic marks . 

With business booming and its mark t xpandillg, tliis IS not 
U18 time for· Americat ,I® to settle for an A Gettln on tne 

future 'equlres an A It (Iemands ihe hallmarks 0 

leaders 1i • efficiency, quality and creatiVity. Americatel's goal 

is 10 be at the top of the cI 55 H,e number one company lor 
tile Hispanic ma~et in the UniiecJ States 

03 
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The year 2002 will go down in history as one of sweeping 
changes in the telecommunications industry. The shifting 
economic expectations of US.  consumers were reflected 
in regulatory changes, shakeups amongst long distance 
operators, and ongoing development of the Internet and 
cellular industries. 

AmericateIQ took on these challenges with the 
confidence of a company with a clear and unwavering 
goal: To become the number one telecommunications 
company for the Hispanic market in the United Stales 

While Atnericatel's@ total international minutes rose In 
2002 to -1 . 1  billion, an increase from the previous year- 
the focus was (>[) imp wing margins arid res~rlk; in  der 

to enter 2003 with a competitive advantage over other 
operators. The strategy worked. By improving efficiency 
and reducing costs, Arnericafel@ earned $266 million in 
revenues in 2002, increasing its operational income to 
$5.9 million. 

AmericateI's@ fundamental strategy during the year 2002 
was to be the leader not only in long distance codes, but 
to consolidate development of its Subscribed Services. 
Long distance sales for new and loyal subscribed clients 
in 2002 totaled over $46 million, a 73 percent increase 
over 2001. In the meantime, Americatel'sB flagship 
product-the 101 0-1 23TM dial-around calling code- 
remained the most-frequently dialed long distance code 
among U.S. Hispanlcs Spurred by new online sales, 
Amer-icatel'sB Prepaid Calling Cards continue to 
have EI r-elevant role within Americatel'sB services 
Amer-ic:iiel@ also refined and introduced a number of 17e \~  
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Americatel’s8 Long Distance Services 

Despite a slow economy, Arnericatet’sO total amount of 
traffic for post-paid services (1 01 0- 1 23TM and 
Subscribed services) continued to grow during 2002. The 
number of international minutes rose 3.7 percent from the 
previous year. The increase IS due in part to Americatel’sC3 
strategy of subscribing 1010-1 23TM clients. 

101 0-1 23TM 

In only four years of operations, Amencatel’s@ flagship 
product-the ‘1 0-1 0- 1 23TM dial-around calling code-has 
become the one of most-frequently dialed long distance 
codes among Hispanics in the United States. 

Drawn by AmericateI’sO distinctive and dynamic 
marketing to the Hispanic community, more than 800,000 
customers used the101 0-1 23TM service for the first time ..... 

in 2002. During an average month, 480,000 loyal 
customers dialed 10 1 0- I 23TM. 

More than ever, 1010-123TM is keeping Hispanics in 
touch with their roots in Latin America. The most popular 
calling destinations during the year were Mexico, El 
Salvador, Guatemala, Colombia and Cuba, while the 
fastest -growing destinations were Brazil, Argentina, 
Nicaragua, Panama and Uruguay. The main cities from 
where 101 0-1 23TM calls originated were Los Angeles, 
New York, San Francisco, Chicago and Washington, DC. 



These transfer processes prompted many satisfied 
customers to increase their business with AmericatelB, 
reflecting the company's strategy during the year to 
consolidate a loyal and profitable base of clients and lay a 
foundation for future expansion. 

While much has been written about 101 0- 123's memory- 
63 21);0-12:5 3 16. i)03,035 . ~- 

/- 

friendly calling code, unbeatable rates and top-notch 
bilingual customer service an equally attractive feature is 
the sheer convenience of using the dial-around service. 
There is no monthly fee for 1010-123TM, and using it 
gives people the freedom to make lorig distance calls 
without signing a contract with a long distance company. 
Customers who do have a long distance provider can use 
101 0 - 1 23TM without changing cornpanies. 

Subscribed Services 

The growing popularity of AmericateI'sGO Subscribed Long 
Distance Service shows that many of the company's 

y, *, r. +- 
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satisfied c~istomers want AmericatelB as their primary 
long distance carrier in their homes and offices. 1 0 1  Q- 

Sparked hy innovative marketing campaigns, the number . , -' 

~ _. 
. .  
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of international Subscribed clients increased 45 percent 
over 2001 International Subscribed traffic jumped 88 
percent 
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ArnericateD has four types of Subscribers: activatec 
clients who use AmericateKB through their local phon€ 
company and dial 01 1 or 1 to place long-distance calls 
Subscribed business clients who receive service anc 
discounts tailored to their specific needs; and Subscribec 
service with a direct billing option, which allows clients tc 
get a separate bill for long-distance service provided bs 
America t el@. 

Residential Subscribers can select from four differen 
plans, each with a competitive rate structure tha 
maximizes discounts and convenience depending on cal 
frequency and destination. AmericateIQ Business Lon< 
Distance offers catling plans tailored to the needs of smal 
and medium-sized businesses, with discounts similar tc 
residential plans. 

As Americatel'sB Subscribed client base diversifies, thE 
company is offering a wider range of promotions anc 
services to meet customer needs and attract new clients 
Subscription sales during the year benefited frorr 
Americatel's@ new online sales program througl- 
Americatel'sB web portal, 1 23.comTM, which began it- 
May 2002. 

Americatel'sB Referral Program boosts subscriptions b\ 
awarding free long-distance minutes to existinc 
cttstomers who refer new/ clients. Americaiel'sB VIP Plan 
which awards free international long distance minutes tc 
subscribers whose average monthly usage passes 2 
certain threshold, has heel? credited with increasint 



customer traffic and reducing abandonment rates. 

As a leading telecommunications company, Americatela 
knows how important it is to listen to its customers. 
AmericatelB conducts ongoing client satisfaction 
campaigns and surveys in order to communicate directly 
with its range of Subscriber clients. This helps the 
company learn more about its customer’s needs and 
meet them, optimize resources, and discover new 
business opportunities. Armed with this vital information 
from its valued clients, AmericateIB will continue to refine 
the pricing, service and convenience of the long-distance 
products it provides to its growing base of Subscribers. 

Just as importantty, AmericatelB set the stage for 
sustainable long-term growth of its calling card products 
through a series of initiatives. In February 2002, to 
complement its “Classic” aiid ”No Connection Fee’’ 
Prepaid Calling Cards, AmericatelB launched a new line 
of regional prepaid calling cards designed and priced to 
suit locai market conditions The cards target Hispanic 
populations in California, Florida, Texas, Georgia and 
Illinois. By specifically tailoring its Prepaid Calling Cards to 
particular segments of the country’s increasingly diverse 
Hispanic population, Arnericatet@ aims to. expand its 
market share nationwide. 

Americatel’sB Prepaid Calling Cards 

Prepaid calling cards are the most frequently used 
nethod of making long distance calls by Hispanics in the 
lnited States, Despite fierce competition, Americatel’s@ 
:lose ties to the Hispanic community have enabled the 
:ompany to establish itself as a leading contender in this 
iighly contested market. 

AmericateI’sB rapid and clear connections, along with its 
top-quality service and support, helped place its Prepaid 
Calling Cards in 1 . I  million U.S. Hispanic homes in 2002. 
For the second consecutive year, Prepaid Calling Cards 
were a profitable line of business for AmericatelB, 
wilh more than 6.6 rnilliori cards sold. 



AmericatelO introduced online sales of Prepaid Calling 
Cards in 2002 through its 123.cOmTM portal and other 
leading Hispanic Internet sites, AmericateIB also 
diversified the distribution channels for it’s Prepaid Calling 
Cards. 

Americatel@ plans to continue to build on its unique 
relationship with Hispanic consumers in 2003. The quick 
success of its online store-sales of Prepaid Calling 
Cards increased every month in 2002-augur well for the 
year ahead. AmericatelO also plans to exparid its number 
of distributors, including co-brandings and national and 
regional distributors 

New Long- Dis tance P rod u cts 

_.‘ 

,/- 

900 Services 

In December 2002, AmericateIG3 finalized connections 
with its provider and began testing of 900 number billed 
calls. Clients pay a predefined amount per call and per 
minute, which is then added to their telephone bill. The 
900 number code is reserved for value-added sewices 
such as information hotlines, voting call-ins and other 
premium content and sewices directed to the Hispanic 
market. AmericatelB plans lo partner with major media 
players in the year ahead to develop this dynamic new 
product. 
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Ametex 10-1 5-688 

AmericateIB launched a new dial-around code during the 
year called Ametex 10- 15-688 in three test markets: 
Chicago, Miami and San Francisco. Initial results were 
promising, and coupled with ongoing marketing efforts, 
AmericateIO expects Ametex IO- 15-688 to become 
another economic dial-around alternative for curretd and 
new customers alike. 

Rest of the World Plan 

Americatel’sB new Rest of the World (ROW) Plan offers 
economical rates to call destinations worldwide. 
Launched during the World Cup and promoted in both 
English and Spanish, ROW helped Americatel@ double its 
average monthly minutes to other countries of Latin 
America and the world during the year. 

Collect 

For everyone from business travelers to college students 
and children, collect calling conveniently enables people 
to stay in touch when they most need to. Americatel’sB 
new collect calling service, launched in 2002, offers 
excellent rates. And it is easy to use: callers just need to 
dial 1-800-30 30-123, say their name when requested, 
and the call is conrrected. 

mer icatel, 
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coniplete line of news and services that can be 
customized to match the interests of users from different 
regions or countries. Attracted by 1 2 3 . ~ 0 ~ ~ ~ ' ~  fast arid 
reliable connections, robust n e b "  and bilingual support 
staff, some thousands new clients signed on for ISP 
services in 2002. They went online for an average of 30 
hours per month, a 15 percent increase in traffic over the 
prevhs  year. 

Internet Services Provider (ISP) 

As interest in the Internet surges among t-lispariics-their 
online populatior: grew by 25 percent in 2001 alone- 
AmericateIO continues to expand its array of bilingual 
dotcom services to meet the needs of its community. 

Nielson/NetRatings reported in 2002 that web surfers of 
Hispanic ongin were the fastest growing at- home ethnic 
group on the web, a finding mirrored by ArnericateI'sB 
growing ISP setuices, 1-he preferred holm page for U.S. 
Hispanics is AI I let icatel's8 dynamic and bilingual web 
portal, w/wv 123 r:m-nTM, which provides arr attractive and 



AmericateIB launched a number of customer-friendly 
services during the year that made it easier than ever to 
go online. Customers can now have their payment added 
to their telephone bilt, a convenience that has also 
facilitated sales Nearly hatf of those who sign up for ISP 
services now choose this payment option 

AmericatelB also offered some irresistible bargains durir‘lg 
the year for new customers who wanted to sign up for the 
123 comTM service. A special promotion offered monthly 
ISP services at a cost more than a third lower than other 
leading providers such as AOL and included a free month 
of comprehensive Interpet and email service 

Prices were also discounted for Americatel’sB 
spectacular “bundled PC” package, which includes a 
home computer, color monitor, free techiiical support, and 
a full warranty and Internet access included for one year. 
Some 85 percent of Americatel’sB ISP customers have 
purchased the service through the “bmdled PC” 
package--a clear sign that Americafel@ IS riot only selling 
online services, i t  is providing a full package that literally 
pulls Hispanics into the Internet age and positions them to 
take optimal advantage of it. 

Looking ahead, AmericatelB atms to consolidate its 
position as the preferred ISP of Hispariics by continuing to 
adapt its services to meet the conmiu1i\y’s growing and 
evolving 017I111e I?eecls. 



. - .  

. 
~ 

~~- . .. . .I 

. -> ,  

i 

1 23.comTM - Americatet’s Communications 
Portal 

Americatel’sB 123.comTM portal is a colorful window to 
the world as dynamic as any website on the Internet. The 
site offers affordable Internet access to an exciting array 
of bilingual content while sefving as an effective 
mechanism for promoting Americatel’sB other 
communications products. 

Conceived from the start as the online communications 
center for Hispanics, 123.comTM offers news, sports, 

1 
a shopping mall, Comprasl23, that is affiliated with top- , 

of-the-line online and offline retailers. The web content is 
1 _ . . -  -. continuatly updated by Americatel’sB specialtzed U S. 

and Latin American editors and includes topics of 
particular importance to Hispanics, such as up-to-date 
information on immigration laws, as well as special events 
and contests associated with holidays celebrated in 
Hispanic cultures. 

i - l .  .. I - - . --A ._ 
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I weather, music, entertainment, job information, and even 
I 

1 
1 

i 

Recently added interactive features include Parejasl23, 
an online personals section; bilingual greeting cards that 
can be designed by users; online video games in 
Spanish; and updated educational software for learning 
English. The number of users of the new and witdly 
popular Chat1 23, Americalel’s@ bilingual discussion 
forum, increased almost 900 percent in 2002, 
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Americatel’s@ online store for its Prepaid Calling Cards 
and Long-Distance Subscription Service, launched in 
January 2002, has been an instant hit with customers. 
Sales of both products have increased every month, and 
both the base of loyal clients and the conversion rate 
have been strong for an online store. 

. .  

AmericateIB has also made its Prepaid Calling Cards 
available through affiliate networks by offering 
commissions to other portals for calling card sales. More 
than 1,200 affiliate portals have been accepted into the 
network to date. 

By expanding its interactive content platform and 
introducing e-commerce options linked to its other 
products, AmericateKB continues to capture the attention 
of growing numbers of Internet users. Amerlcatel’sB 
proven strategy of providing value-added services to its 
customers will make 123.cornTM a strong competitor in 
the year ahead. 

Rest ol US 27% 
Florida 27% 

Texas 12% 

New York 15% 

- ~. . . . ~ .  
FREE WEB MAIL BY STATE 
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television program Sabado Gigante, with the winning 
family awarded $1 40,000 they could use towards the 
purchase of a home. Similar family-oriented promotions 
included a popular contest for a vacation to Orlando 
theme parks, and a Mother's Day contest that included a 
trip to Miami, makeover and shopping spree. 

AmericatelB was also active during the year's most 
mernorable sporting event, the World Cup soccer 
championship, investing in the seven principal U.S. 
Hispanic markets. AmericateIQ ran commercials in both 
English and Spanish in order to reach the full breadth of 
the h~lgi: audience for this event 

Corporate Re I at ions/P u bl ic Service 

AmericateIB has become part of the fabric of the U.S 
Hispanic community-a corporate identity that gives the 
company a competitive edge and is a vital part of its 
growth strategy. 

As in business, AmericatelB leads the way in community 
service By donating 800 numbers, sponsoring mobile 
consulates, and supporting other charitable events and 
initiatives, Americatel8 has become part of the fabric of 
the U.S. Hispanic community-the very people who use 
its products and services 

€ducation enabled Mexican migrant workers in the United 
States to obtain information regarding the transfer of their 
children's school records to U.S. schools. 
The governments of Bolivia and Honduras have brochures 
donated by ArnericateIO to disseminate critical consular 
information for Consulates in USA. Also for the 
Governments of Guatemala, Peru and El Salvador, 800 
numbers were donated to prwide important immigration 
information as well as Consular procedures. For 
Guatemala Consulates, Americatel@ sponsors mobile 
consulate services in Connecticut, Rhode Island , 
Pennsylvania, Boston, New York, New Jersey, Atlanta, 
Swth Carolina and throughout Florida, for Guatetnalan 
nationals who do not have access to consulate offices. 

! Amencatel Award 
Governor of the Year, 21302 

George E Patalu, NY 
j 

In 20CQ, thousands of people called 800 numbers 
donated by Ai-nericatel@ for free inforrriatioii A toll-free 
line dmxileii by k-nericatel@ tc? i'/le:iico's Department of 
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AmericateI Annual Report 
“North Amenca Eronze Awards 2002” 

In November 2002, Americatel played a key role in 
helping the Salvadoran government advise its nationals 
living in the United States to meet a pending deadline to 
extend their U S. work permits for the TPS program. At no 
charge, Arnericatel sent a message from Salvadoran 
President Francisco Flores into the homes of 500,000 
U.S. clients identified in its database as having called El 
Salvador, vdhich is the second largest calling destinatior! 
for Americatel customers. 

“Many Salvadorans have told me, wiiti great emotion, that 
they had received a call from the president,“ said the 
Salvad(xm Ambassador to the United States in a front- 
page article in The Washington Post “They didn’t know 
how President Flores knew their telephone number:” 

Also, Americatel’s@ ISP services designs and maintains 
websites for the Central American Chamber of Commerce 
and the Embassy of El Salvador, providing access to 
services for millions of Hispanics living throughout the 
United States. The website designed by Americatel for the 
Embassy of El Salvador provides information for all the 
consulates within U.S. 

Americatel has a special place in the hearts of many U.S. 
Hispanics because its image is based on a concrete 
record of public service, particularly for recent immigrants 
who are most in need. Americatel has stood shoulder-to- 
shoulder time and again with Latill American and U.S 
government agencies, community organizations and Ihe 
media in support of initiattms 1(7 help tiispanic 
con? m I : 17 i lies , 
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Special Recognition 

AmericateI'sCC world-class public service, as well as its 
success as a Hispanic company, has not gone 
unrecognized. Each year, Americatel is honored by 
organizations for its achievements and contributions to 
the U S  Hispanic community. &td Latin America. 

In 2002, the L1.S.-Mexico Chamber of Commerce 
awarded Aniericatel its "Double Eagle Leadership Award" 
for ongoing support to the Mexican and overall Hispanic 
community in the United States. The award recognized 
Americatel for its unique contributions to Hispanic culture, 
arts and social initiatives. 

During the year, Americatel also received the prestigious 
"Orquidea USA 2002" Award from the Colombian 
community in the United States in honor of the 
company's ongoing support for Hispanic and Latin 
American causes and community. 

Americatel CEO Jorge Asecio received the "2002 
Excellence Award" from the magazine America Economia 
and was featured in its September issue The annual 
award is given to leading companies and executives in 
Latin America, with the emphasis in 2002 on innovation 
and internationalization. 

Double Eagle Leadership Award United 
States - Mexico Chamber of Commerce 

#7 Private Hispanic Company in Florida 
Greater Miami Chamber of Commerce 
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I nf ras t ruct u re and Faci I it ie s 

Security is a priority at AmericateIO With our nation facing 
unprecedented threats of terrorism, AmericateKB is taking 
concrete steps to ensure continuous operation of critical 
telecommunications services for the thousands of families 
who depend on its services. 

To protect its customers, Americatel'sB international 
gateway switching facility in New York-a key component 
in the company's network infrastructure-1s equipped with 
an Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) and a DC power 
battery back up system. Ti-le siaie-of -theart facility also 
houses a carrier class prepaid platform, a carrier grade 
voiceover IP (VolP) platform, and the latest 
T I  /E 1 /DS3/0C3/STM-I multiplexers 

AmericateIG3 connects with over 230 countries through 
correspondent agreements with more than 75 
telecommunications carriers, and made possible by 
different satellites and fiber optic cables. 

Am e r I ca t e 18 Mi a mi Intern at ion a I Te I eco m rn u n i cat i o ns 
facility is also equipped with high-capacity UPS and an 
electi-rcal power generator to ensure continuous operation 
of mission-critical telecommunicatioris equipment in the 
event of a power outage. 

An IericateI'sO employees are no st rangers to operating 
effectively tn a clisis, Despite the chaos in New 'fork 
i 171 r-n ecl i at e I y foliow i n g S e p t e m b e r I -1 I Am e r i cat e I 'SO 
dedicaied teclmicians workecl ai otitici the dock to prever-il 

any service interruptions-no easy feat, considering that 
many solutions had to be devised remotely. 

In Miami, the company operates a total access ISP 
platform that provides Internet access to customers 
throughout the U.S mainland, and web portal services. 

The Miami teleport facility provides state-of-the-art 
telecommunications infrastructure to suppot-t a wide 
variety of Americatel'sB services. It features a base 
satellite telecommunications infrastructure comprised of 
one Standard-A, one Standard-B and one Standard-F3 
antenna. A11 of these are equipped with fully-redundant 
electronic components, including IBS/IDR/TCM-IDR 
compatible satellite modems, High Power Amplifiers (HPA) 
and Low Noise Amplifiers (LNA). The equipment is 
diligently configured and maintained around the clock to 
guarantee the highest level of reliability 

In addition to its base satellite telecommunications 
capabilities, Americatel'sB Miami teleport is 
interconnected to the submarine fiber optic cable 
systems located off Florida's east coast. The facility 
houses state-of-the-art T1 / E l  /DS3/OC3/OC48 
multiplexers, VSAT hubs and carrier class IP routers. 

The aftermath of September 1 I was a reminder that 
reliable cummurtications are more impor-[ant than ever 
during a crisis. Custoimrs can count on Americatel'sB 
cutting edge technology ai7d experienced professionals to 
provide secure and reliable telecommunlcalrons services 
in good times acid bad 



Fiber Optic Cables 

AmericatelB uses world-class fiber optic and satellite 
transmission resources to offer crystal clear sound, 
secure and reliable connections, and low prices. 

Ever since it began operations, AmericatelB has 
leveraged -the fiber optic resources of its parent cornpang, 
ENTEL Chile, for consistent competitive advantage. 

AmericateIB currently uses several top-quality Atlantic and 
Pacific Ocean submarine fiber optic cable systems. The 
Lafin American Nautilus (MN! Global Crossing's Pari 
American Crossing (PAC), South American Crossing 
(SAC) and Mid Atlantic Crossing (MAC) widely connect 
AmericateIQ with ENTEL Chile and facilitate additional 
connections to Mexico, Panama, and South American 
countries such as Peru, Bolivia, Colombia and Venezuela. 

The Maya- 1 submarine cable system provides 
AmericateIQ with exceptional connectivity to Mexico, 
Colombia and Central American countries such as 
Honduras, Panama and Costa Rica. The Columbus 111 
cable provides a unique connection between the United 
States and Italy, ensuring high-quality connections to the 
rest of Europe, as well as Africa and the Middle East 
Americas II connects South Florida to Fortaleza, Brazil. 

AniericateK'E also enjoys the unique advantage of poir rts 
r;l presence at the OJUS si.ibr-narine cable landing :;iaticjn 
i i \  I-lollywood, Flotid;i, and 2t the NAP of 1-he Ar-nericas 

0 p e r a . t  i o n s . 

(NOTA) \n Miami. The OJUS POP provides the company 
with direct connections to the Maya-1 ,~ Americas II and 
Columbus I l l  submarine cable systems, while its presence 
at the NOTA gives the company a number of options in 
terms of interconnecting with doi-nestic as well as 
international telecommunications providers. 

Satellites 

AmericateIO constantly readjusts and optimizes the use 
of its cable and satellite resources in order to provide 
secure, industry-leading service and adapt to changing 
circumstances In approximately ten years Gf operation, 
AmericatelQ has developed a range of satellite resources 
to further extend its reach and as an alternative to 
restoring fiber optics links. 

Facilities for New York Switch 
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Billing and Collectims 

AmericatelB outsources most billing and collection 
functions in order to minimize operating costs and 
maximize shareholder value. The functions are carried out 
by established external providers who provide coverage 
for more than 1,300 North American local telephone 
companies (LEGS). Americatel'sB billing and collections 
department monitors I controls and analyzes information 
pertaining to all the billing provider's activities. This 
includes information on remittances, service charges, 
unbillable accounts, bad debts and account adjustments. 
The department is also responsible for all Exchange 
Message Interface (€MI) traffic control, and initiates 
blocking procedures for unbillables and rejected EMls as 
needed. Americatel@ operates a direct billirig program for 
customers living in areas where they cannot be billed 
through a LEG, thus making it possible for them to use 
ArnericatelB as a their long distance carrier. 

Revenue Protection 

As Americatel'sB long distance call volume has grown, 
the company has taken aggressive steps to protect its 
revenue by installing the latest software technology 
systems available. Those efforts continued in earnest 
during 2002. AmericatelB refined its revenue protection 
capacity by updating Out Smart, its fraud control sofimre. 
The changes have enabled AmericateIO to customize 
fraud detection measures according to markets and call 
destinations. 

AmericateI'sO Revenue Protection Department employs 
an online call detail report (CDR) system to continually 
monitor and analyze traffic in search of possible fraudulent' 
calls. This system tracks the duration, frequency and 
timing of calls and generates alerts whenever an 
irregularity is detected. Analysis tools are also used to 
study customers' calling patterns by origin and call 
destination 

Americatel'sB advances in revenue protection during the 
year build on a series of investments by the company in 
recent years to enhance its fraud detection systems. The 
company has expanded its capacity to store information 
related to alerts and CDRs, and has implemented more 
direct methods for blocking accounts identified as 
fraudulent, Arnericatel'sC3 software establishes precise 
arid flexible alarm parameters by [using such variables as 
the time of day, week or i-nor lit 1 arid call destination, length 
and cost. These systems liave enabled AmericateIG3 to 



greatly reduce blocking response time when fraudulent 
calls are detected, resulting in substantial monthly 
savings. 

AmericateIB has also brought in revenue protection 
specialists. New fraud analysts with Americatel’sB 
expanded revenue protection staff ensure full 24x7 
coverage, including special fccc;s coverage peak usage 
times. 

Human Resources 

A company 1s only as strong as its people, and 
AmericatelB and its employees keep getiing stronger and 
stronger. 

The exponential growth of such products as 101 0- 1 23TM 
and ISP/Portal Services has created great demand for 
qualified staff for AmericaIeKB since its inception. Staff 
increased on average by 24 percent annually up until last 
year. 

. , . ~ . 
! 
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But with AmericateIB now consolidated 
telecommunications business, staffing increased by only 4 
percent in 2002. With able growth, the focus was on 
strengthening and consolidating current staff in order to 
maximize efficiency, develop and promote its growing 
product lines, and provide the best service possible. 

,4mericatel@ is an Equal Opportunity Employer, with an 
Affirmative Action Plan. The company provides a 
comprehensive benefit package to its employees. 

j !  
i 4: 
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Why Amer'icateiO is a Leader 

By Konrad Burchardt 

AmericateIR serves the 42 million people that comprise the 
Hispanic market by offering them an economical way of 
making long distance calls. 

Our traditional product 101 0-1 23TM has become the 
leading carrier for long distance phone calls among 
Hispanics. However, in order to stay on top of the 
competition in the telecommunications market, we must 
face new challenges. Therefore, this year Americatel@ will 
launch an innovative line of products and services that will 
offer customers the control, security, and trust they need in 
order- to better manage their accounts. 

Cine of the proclucts that Ai-nericatel@ has iniroduceci with 
mcch S C J C C ~ S S  is its new calling card, which meets the 

needs of the thousands of !mmigrants arriving in the lJnitecl 
States every year. 

AmericatelB knows its clients as no other company does, 
and we know which products and services are important io 
them. Armed with this knowledge, experience and 
commitment, AmericateIO will meet the needs of the 
Hispanic market like never before, making us a leader in 
2003 and beyond 

AmericateKB has international vision and experience, but also 
the savior faire to create a niche in one of the most 
competitive markets in the world. 

AmericateIB has drive and creativity. Euildrng on six years of 
success, we have skyrocketed to the top of the 
tel ecom r-n I 1 n i cat i ons i t i  d CI s t ry bec a ~ i  se of oci r- t cch n i ca I 
expertise and our unparalleled knowledge of {he t i ispax 
market, 



L o o k i n g  F o r w a r d  

With G G ~  quality produsts and ster!ing image, AmerkxdeI@ 
today starids poised to take a leading position in the Hispanic: 
telecommunicatiorls market 

y o w t h  III Americatel’sB pvp~ilar 101 0- 1 23TM, SuGscribac? 
Services and Prepaid Call;ng CdIds, which meet the needs 
of thousands of immigrants arriving in the lJnited States wen] 
year. 

An industry leader takes the initiative and grabs hold of ihe 
future 

Ari inrlustry leader IS innovative, quickly harnesslrq:j the most 
EtVicierit resources and technoioyy. 

An industry leader is able to supply everything a clierit x e d s  
today and anticipates what they will need tomorrow 

ArnericatelC5) has proven it car1 grow and will continue to 
grow Our greater strength in this pursuit are a i r  clients. We 
are a Hispanic company with a special mdet standing of the 
Hispanic market- -a  competitive advantage that has helped 11s 
close the yap between the largest companies in the industry, 
continuing to increase our market share Americatel@ has 
become a telecomnrunications giant in its own right, today 
ranked as the 40th largest worldwide carrier in terms of 
traff ic. 
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Since its inception, AmericateIQ has enjoyed sustained 
growth both in terms of expanding its client base and 
incorporating new products In 2002, having attained a 
significant shat e of the Hispanic market, AmericatelB 
began the process of consolidating its operations. The 
focus was on implementing measures to make the 
company more efficient and profitable In this manner, 
Americatela achieved sales of $266 million and; despite 
a 45 percent decline in revenue, turned around its 
operational results from -$6.4 million in 2001 to +$5 8 
million in 2002. In short, Americatel'sB new strategy for 
2002 favored profttabiltty over growth, It is also important 
to note that these positive results came during downturn 
in the economy that had a particularly negative effect on 
Hispanics. 

Revenues 

Americatel'sO3 101 0-1 23Tbq service coi3tncied to be the 
company's lead prockrct in 2002 accounting tor 45 
percent ot total revenues of $266 million. This was 
followed by Carrier Services with 18 percent, Long- 

50 ' ! 
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Distance products with 17 percent, and Prepaid Calling 
Cards with 16 percent. 

Operational ncome 

As a result of management during 2002, Atnericatel'sG8 
AmericatelB centered its strategy in 2002 on operational income amounted to $5 8 million, compared 
consolidating a loyal and profitable base of clients and to -$6.6 million in the previous year. 
offering them Subscription service. This resulted in a 32 
percent increase in the client base, bringing the total EBlTDA 
number of subscribed clients to 171,000. 

A.mericatel's@ EBlTDA in 2002 amounted to $1 1.4 million, 
It should be pointed out that Carrier Services, through the compared to -$I 5 million in 2001. 
sale and purchase of minutes, increased its volume of 
international traffic in 2002 by 25 percent over the 
previous year, surpassing the growth of the market The 
volume of minutes moved by Carrier Services place it 
among the largest 40 carriers in the world. 

Cost of Sales 

The cost of sales declined by 22 percent to $207 million 
in 2002, compared with a decline of only 15 percent in 
revenue As a result, Americatel'sB gross rnaryin 
increased by approximately $1 0 million compared to 
2001, which represents a net increase of 20 percent. 

Administrative and Sales Expenses 

Arriericatel'sB administrative and sales expenses in 2002 
were teduced by $2 5 millioii frorn the previous year. This 
can be explained 117 part by B restl-crcturing of experises 
arid by riioi-e efficient pol~cies in terrris of control ot 
erpei I!-;es, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
AmericatelB Corporation: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of AmericateIG3 Corporation (the “Company”) as of December 31, 
2002 and 2001, and the related statements of income and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in U S 
dollars) which, as described in Note I ,  have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in 
Chile These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on OUT audits 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and in 
Chile Those standzrds require th3t we plar! and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentatton We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion 

In out- opinion, such financial stalements present fairly, in ail material respecls, the iinanckii posiiion of the Company at 
December 31, 2002 and 2001 ancl the results of its operations arid 11s cash flows for the years then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in Chile. 

Januarj 24, 2003 



AMERICATELB CORPORATION 

Balance Sheets 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Deferred tax asset, net 
Due from related parties 

$8,692,304 in 2002 and $7,979,360 in 2001 

2002 

$ 2,340,495 

200 1 

$ 1,379,465 

44,047,382 50,744,691 
5,812,110 3,769,492 

. 8,642,000 9,886,000 
1 ,I 68,690 1,187,176 

OTHER RECEIVABLE, net 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS, net 

LIABtL1TIES A N D  STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

CURRENT Ll AB1 LIT1 ES . 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenues 
Revolving lines of credit agreements 
Current portion of obligations under capital leases 
Due to stockholder and related parties, net 

14,858,702 16,699,812 

5,74 1,909 4,058,6;5 1 

- 9  r - .  . 

$ 30,301,048 
1,755,346 
7,500,000 

382,274 
36,773,009 

$ 45,016,054 
7,521,823 
7,000.000 

191,102 
23,934,194 

OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL CEASES, net 240,45 1 94,379 

COMMKMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 8) 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUlTY 
Comrnon stock, $01 par value, 150,000 shares authorized, 

Aclditional paid-in capital 
Accumulated debt 

61 ,854 shares issued and outstanding 61 9 
62,371,934 
(32,300,30 I )  

61 9 
62,371,934 
(36,4 79,7 26) 
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AM E R I CATEL0 COR P 0 RAT IO N 

Statements of income 
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 

2002 200 1 

RWENUES $ 265,6 19,542 $ 31 4,524,957 

COSTS AND D(PENSES 
Cost of revenues 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 

200,389,550 
59,335,096 

259,589,412 
61,304,789 

- ,  
.. __ 

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OFEWTiONS 5,894,896 (6,369,244) 

OTHER (D(PENSE) INCOME 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Other income (expense) 

87,684 
(2,72 1,764) 

33,559 

215,522 
(1,192,880) 

[404,5! 6) 

Oiher expense (2.600,52 1 ) (1,381,974) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE BENEFIT FROM 
INCOME TAXES 3,294,375 (7,751,218) 

BENEFIT FROM INCOME TAXES 885,050 8 ,  I 37,843 

,NlgjNCQMEL;:; ::.,.;: :- . .- , ... . _..-.-I_ --__--I- - - - 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



AM E R I CAT E I-@ C 0 R P 0 RAT I ON 

Statements -of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES, 
Cash provided from 
Receipts from customers 
Interest received 

Cash disbursed to: 
Payments to suppliers and ernployees 
Interest paid 
income taxes paid 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of property and equipment 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from BCI advance 
Payments on BCI advance 
Proceeds from BC1 loail 
Payment on obligation under capital leases 
Net borrowings under revolving line of credit agreements 
Net borrowings from stockholder 

Net cash provided by financing activities 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

2002 

$ 260,674,086 
87.684 

(257,726,574) 
(2,668,205) 

(1 17,722) 
249,269 

(4, 7 7,783) 

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET GASt-1 
PROVlDEO BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

$ Net income 
Adjustments to reconcde net income to net cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for doubtful accounts 
Benefit from deferred income taxes 
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Decrease (increase) in receivables 
Increase in pi epaid expenses and other current assets 
(Decrease) ii \crease in accounts payable ancl acr;rix:d expenses 
(Decrease) increzse in deferred revenues 
Increase in dut! to stockholder and related p,::ties, net 
Decrease in uitm 11:~~ 1~1-teicm liabilities 

.. . - . -  
.~ 

Ne1 cxl i  piow ii'ii by (t  [sed-in) bpe:l'atlilcj : X ; ~ I V I ~ I ~ S  
<:> $' 

(3,500,000) 

(361,456) 
500,000 

5 3 5  1,000 
5,189,544 

961.030 

4,179,425 

5,334,335 
5,570,053 
(1,244,000) 

1,627,256 
(2,042,618) 

(1 4,7 1 5,006) 
(5, X 6 , 4 i  7) 
/I ,306,301 

2001 

$ 244,139,355 
21 5,522 

(270,296,856) 
(I  ,168,880) 

(677,626) 
(27,788,485) 

(4,372,755) 

7,000,000 
(3,500,000) 
10,000,000 

('I 35,000) 
7,000,000 
7,100,000 
2 7,465,000 
(4,696,240) 

$ 386,625 

4,659,370 
23,992,951 
(8,642,000) 

(63,751,005) 
(1,399,224) 
5,627,711 
3,836,131 
7,751,798 
(250,842) 

:;; (27,788,485) ' 



Notes To Financial statements 
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 

1. ORGANIZATION, BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization - Americatela Corporation (the “Company“) was incorporated in Delaware on April 29, 1992. In 1996, the 
Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Entet International B.V.I. Corporation (“Entel BVI”), which is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Empt-esa Nacional de Telecomunicaciones S.A (“Entel”). On July 22, 1997, the Company and Entel BVI entered 
into a stock purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with Seaquins Investments S .A. (”Seaquins”) and Gadol, Inc (“Gadol”), 
The effective date of the Agreement was May 30, 1997. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company issued and Seaquins 
purchased 5,498.1 1 shares, representing I O  percent of the total outstanding shares of the Company‘s common stock after 
the issuar-Ice. The total consideration was $4,625,000. In addition, Gzdol was granted an option to purchase 6,872.64 
newly issued shares of the Company, at an initial option price of $4,625,000 plus an interest factor of 10 percent per annum, 
based on the number of days elapsed during the option period. During December 2000, Gadol exercised the entire option 
giving 4,810.84 shares to Brundidge Investments, Ltd. and retaining 2,061.8 shares As of December 31 I 2002, Gadol, 
Brundidge Investments, Ltcl. and Seaquins, in aggregate, own arid control 20% of the outstanding common shares of the 
Co!npmy 

Description of Business - The Company is a facilities-based telecommunication company based in Miami, providing ’ 

business services between the U S. I Latin America and the Carribbean over satellite and fiber optic cable. The Company’s 
pubic long-distance customers are able to access its network by dialing a unique carrier- identification code (“CIG code“) 
before dialing the number they are calling. Using a CIC code to access the Company’s network is known as  a “dial around” or 
“casual calling” because customers can use the Company’s services at any time wilho~t changing their existhg long distance 
carrier To accomplish this, the Company acquired the rights for the C1C code ‘I IO- IO- 1 23.” 

In January 2001 , the Company launched 123 comTM, an Internet service provider and portal geared towards the U.S 
Hispanic market. 

Basis of Presentation - The accoinpanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accouiiting 
principles generally accepted in Chile (“generally accepted accounting principles”) I 

Cash Equivalents - The Company considers cash on ham and iii banks and all highly liquid instruments purchased wrth an 
original rriatcirity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 



upon the minutes of traffic processed and established rates. Other service revenues are recognized when the services are 
provided in accordance with contractual terms. As of December 31 I 2002 and 2001 , the Company had approximately 
$1,755,000 and $7,522,000, respectively, in deferred revenues primarily from the sale of prepaid calling cards 

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation on property and equipment IS computed 
under the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments 
are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to income as incurred. 

. - 1  

Other Assets - Other assets consist principally of licenses. The cost of licenses is amortized under the straight-line method 
over the term of the respective license agreement. 

Income Taxes - The Company records income taxes in accordance with Technical Bulletin No. 60 of Chilean accounting 
standards which parallels Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 1 09, Accounting for lncome Taxes. 
Under SFAS No, 109, income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of 
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and to net loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences 
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates IS recognized 
in income in the period that includes the enactment date 

2. AGREEMENT FOR CUSTOMER BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS 

During June 2001 the Company engaged Billing Concepts, Inc (“BCl”) to handle the Company’s customer billings and 
collections for its “10-1 0-1 23” service Pursuant to the agreement, BCI performs the following functions/sewices for the 
Company: 

Processes and transmits the Company’s “ 7  0- IO- 123” bitling records to the appropriate local exchange carrier (I’LEC”) 
for billing and collection, 

Provides eleclroriic information and reports to the Corrrpany, 
Processes payments received from the LECh, determines required holdbacks, fees, taxes, and other relevarnt charges, 
Iqernits net proceeds to the Company; 

. F3rovides customer service procedures; 

. 



Determines the amounts of bad debts from the “ I  0-1 0-1 23” service; arid 
Performs other relevant services 

Funds collected by BCI at-e remitted to the Company or1 the first -Tuesday following the expiration of seven business days after 
receipt by 8Ct of the funds from a LEG. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the receivable from BCI amounted to 
approximately $32,858,000 and $36, I 73,000, respectively. 

In June 2001 , BCl provided the Company with a $7,000,000 interest free advance. The terms of the advance required 25% 
payments, each due in August 2001, November 2001, February 2002 and May 2002. The repayment of the advance was 
made from the collections on the trade receivables that collateralized the advance. As of December 31, 2002, the 
outstanding balance on the advance has been paid. In July 2001 , BCI also provided the Company with a $1 0,000,000 loan 
bearing interest at prime plus 4% (8.25% at December 31, 2002). The loan matures at the end of the three-year agreement 
with BCI. The repayment of the loan is to be made from the collections on the trade receivables that collateralized the 
advance. As of December 31 , 2002 and 2001, the outstanding balance of the loan is approximately $1 0,436,000 and 
$1 0,000,000, respectively, including interest. The advance and loan gives the Company the right of setoff against the 
receivabie otherwise due from BCI and, accordingly, the amounts have been netted for purposes of the financial statement 
presentation. The receivable from BCI, net of the advance and loan, ace included in trade receivables in the accompanying 
balance sheets. 

Prior to June 2001 , the Company had engaged OAN Service, Inc. (“OAN”) to handle the Company’s customer billings and 
collections for its ”1 0-1 0-1 23” service. During May 2001 , OAN filed for Chapter I 1 bankruptcyheorganiaation, at which time 
the Company’s receivable from OAN totaled approximately $37,169,000. The Company has initiated an adversary 
proceeding in the Chapter 1 1 case against OAN (see Note 8). The Company has reclassified the OAN receivable, net of an 
allowance for doubtful accounts of $14,000,000 (see Note 8), to Other Receivable, net in the accompanying balance sheets 



3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment, as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 consist of the following: 

Land 
Building and improvements 
Telecommunrcalrons equipment 
Offlce eqyipment and software 
Furniture and fixtures 
Automobiles 

Less accumulared depreciation 

2002 

$732,700 
3,485,596 

26,064,963 
2,520,091 

416,561 
14,580 

33,234,49 1 
(I 8,375,789) 

200 1 

$732,700 
3,244,991 

23,309,462 
2,378,035 

390,958 
14,580 

30,070,726 
(13,370,914) 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

7-40 years 
5-1 0 years 
4-5 years 

7-  1 0 years 
5 years 

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31 , 2002 and 2001 amounted to approximately $5,005,000 and 
$4,361,000, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 , cost of sales includes approximately 
$1,797,000 and $1,458,000, respectively, of depreciation expense related to services rendered during the year. The 
telecommunications equipment owned by the Company is subject to rapid technological obsolescence; therefore, it is 
reasonably possible that the equipment's estimated useful lives could change in the near term. 

4. REVOLVING LINES OF CREDIT AGREEMENTS 

In April 2001 , the Company entered into three revolving lines of credit agreements under which the Company was provided 
three $3,500,000 lines of credit by Banco Credito Inversiones, Corp Banca NY, and Banque Sudameris. In December 2001, 
the Company paid off the agreement with Corp Banca NY. As of December 31, 2001 , the amounts outstanding under the 
remaining two revolving agreements was $7,000,000 Banco Credrto lnversiones and Banque Sudameris each had an 
outstanding balance of $3,500,000 bearing interest at LlBOR plus I .2% (3.07% at December 31 ,' 2001). The-Banco Credito 
lnversiones agreement matured and was renewed on January 4, 2002 and is renewable on a month to month basis until 
demand payt-nent is made by Banco Credito Inversiones. In June 2002 and September 2002, the Company paid the 
outstnr~hg balmce on the tvvo Iir-ies of Gredit with Banque Sudameris and Banco Credito Inversiones. 



In November 2002, the Company entered into a $1 0,000,000 revolving tine of credit with Banco Credit0 Inversiones bearing 
an interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.5% (2 92% as of December 31, 2002). As of December 31 I 2002 the amount outstanding on 
the line of credit was $7,500,000, The revolving agreement does not contain any restrictive financial covenants. 

The revolving lines of credit were obtained by the Company in 2001 to alleviate the cash flow needs caused by the OAN 
Chapter 11 case. 

5.  RELATED PPIRTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 

The following table summarizes the related party balances and transactions as of Oecember 31 , 2002 and 2001 : 

2002 2001 

Due to stockholder and related parties, net: 
Services provided by certain affiliates 
Entel Internet Agreement 
Entel LCR Agreement 
Entel Satellite Agreement 
Entel Loans 

$ 18,035,009 
(3,853,000) 

410,000 
4,475,000 

17,706,000 

$ 15,993,194 
(3,47 6,000) 
1,305,000 
2,648,000 
7,464,000 

Americasky Agreement - On March 31 , 1993, the Company entered into an agreement with Americasky Corporation 
("Americasky") to provide for the operation and maintenance of the Company's telecommunication facilities given that 
Americasky owns the Federal Communications Commission license to operate a common carrier radio facility Americasky is 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of fntel BVI. The initial term of the agreement is for a period of 10 years with continual self- 
renewing five-year intervals. The agreement calls for the Company to maintain and operate its facmes and Americasky, in 
turn, will lease said facilities, in addition to any required office and storage space. There were no amounts oldstanding as of 
December 31, 2002 and 2001 as a result of this agreement. 



Entel Internet Agreement - Effective November 7 995, the Company entered into an agreement to provide Entel access to 
the Internet for an initial start-up fee plus a monthly fixed fee. The agreement is effective for a one-year period and renews 
automatically for additional and successive 12-month terins, provided neither party terminates it. As of December 31 , 2002 
and 2001 , amounts due from Entel related to this agreement are approximately $3,853,000 and $3,476,000, respectively, 
which is netted in due to stockholder and related parties in the accompanying balance sheets. 

Entel LCR Agreement - Effective February 1996, the Company entered into another agreement with Entel whereby the 
Company sells units (minutes) atong its link with Entel to other carriers and vice versa. Revenue is generated with the flow from 
the traffic usage and flaw from one country to the other. Effective May 1998, the Company uses its own switch to sell units 
(versus relying on Entel) on a Least Cost Routing (‘‘LCR’’) basis. Entel is a major terminating carrier on the LCR System. As of 
December 31 , 2002 and 2001 , included in due to stockholder and related parties is a net payable of approximately $41 OiOOO 
and $1,305,000, respectively, related to this agreement. 

Entel Satellite Agreement - Atso included in due to stockholder and related parks in the accompanying balance sheets as 
of December 31 , 2002 and 2001 is a payable amounting to approximately $4,475,000 and $2,648,000, respectively, related 
to an agreement with Entel whereby the Company pays a fixed monthly charge for the usage of the 
telecommunication/sateltile link between the United States and Chile. 

Services Rendered/Provided by Certain Affiliates - In the normal course of business, the Company provides 
telecommunication services to certain affiliates As of December 31 , 2002 and 2001 , the Company had receivables from 
these affiliates amounting to approximately $1 ,169,000 and $1 , 187,000, respectively. Additionally, as of December 31 , 2002 
and 2001 , the Company had outstanding payables amounting to approximately $1 8,035,000 and $1 5,993,000, respectively, 
for telecommunication sewices provided to the Company by affiliates. 

Entel Loans - In July 2001 , the Company obtained two short-term loans of $7,000,000 and $3,000,000, both bearing an 
interest rate of 15% from Eritel. In December 2001 , the Company paid off these loans. On December 12, 2001 , the 
Company obtained an additional loan for $5,500,000 bearing interest of 14.29%. Additionally, on December 28, 2001, Entel 
transferred $1,600,000 to Amencatel@ Guatemala on behalf of the Company. 

During 2002, the Company obtained three additional bans from Entel totaling $1 0,230,000, each bearirig an interest rate of 
12.86%. A portion of the futcls were used to pay off two lines of credit with Banyue Sudameris arid Banco Credit0 
lnversiones (See Note 4). In November 2002, the Company paid $1,679,000 on the $5,500,000 loan obtained in 



, 

December 2001. The interest expense incurred on the loans to Entel was $1,691,000 and $364,000 for 2002 and 2001 , 
respectively. As of December 31 2002 and 2001 , the outstandlng balance to Entel including interest was $1 7,706,000 and 
$7,464,000, respectively, and is included in due to stockholder and related parties in the accompanying ba\ance sheets 

6. INCOME TAXES 

The components of the benefit from (provision for) income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as 
fol Io\Ns : 

2002 

$ (358,950) Current 

zoo1 

$ (504,157) 

The following table summarizes the Company's net deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 : 

200 I 2002 

$ 8,361,000 $ 5,967,000 
8,238,000 

Net loss carryforwards 
8,615,000 

372,000 
Allowance for doubtful accounts Alternaiive nanirnum tax credits 372,000 

781,000 Related party accrued interest (14,000) 
72,000 Other 

15,807,000 16,957,000 Total net deferred tax assets 

(5,921,000) (8,3 1 5,000) 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)' 

Valuation allowance 

. . -  , . ,. . -.- ~, .. - . .-,__ -- - ..- - - 
i _ - - _  Net rJ5feTrec taxdsset-: . - , _a 



As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had net loss carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes of 
approximately $1 4,929,000 and $21,653,000, respectively, expiring through 207 9. A portion of the tax loss carryforwards are 
subject to the limitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. In July 1996, additional shares of stock of the Company 
were transferred to Entel. lJnder the provisions of Section 382, this transfer resulted in an ownership change due to Entet’s 
greater-than 50 percent increase in stock ownership within a three-year period. Once an ownership change is deemed to 
have occurred under Section 382, a limitation on the annual utilization of net loss carryovers is imposed, As a result of the 
1996 ownership change, the utilization of the Company’s remaining pre-July 1996 net losses as of December 31 , 2002, totals 
approximately $2,501,000 and is limited to a maximum of approximately $1,606,000 annually through their expiration date If 
another ownership change should occur in the future, the tax-ioss carryovers ptior io the change in ownership may be further 
limiied under the provision of Section 382. 

i 

Future tax benefits, such as net loss carryforwards, are required to be recognized to the extent that realization of such benefits 
is more likely than not A valuation allowance is established for those benefits that do not meet the more likely than not criteria. 
A valijatim albwance has bccn established at December 31 , 2002 for the portion at t.he net deferred tax assets that in 
management’s judgment may not be realized within the foreseeable future. 

7. STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Addl t ional Total 
Common Pard-in Accumulated Stockholders’ 
Stock Capital Deficit Equity 

Balance, December 31, 2000 $ 619 $ 6’2,371,934 $ (36,866,351) $ 25,506,202 

Net income 386,625 386,625 

8alance, December 31, 2001 61 9 62,371,934 (36,4 7 9,7 26) 25,892,827 
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8.  co dM1TMENTS AND CO JTINGENCIES 

Leases - The Company is obligated under various noncancelable operating and capital leases expiring through the year 201 2 
for various equipment used in relation to the operations of the Company. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease 
payments under the terms of noncancelable operating and capital leases as of December 31 , 2002. 

Ye2r Ending 
December 31, 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 and thereafter 

Future Minimun 
Lease Payments . 

Operating Capital 
teases Leases 

$ 500,000 
434,000 
393,000 
393,000 

1,094,000 

$ 389,058 , 
283,223 

rota1 obligation under capital leases 
Less: current maturities 

622,725 
(3 82,2 7 4) 

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 amounted to approximately $797,000 and $726,000, 
respectively. 

Litigation - In 2001 , the C m r q x "  commenced an adversary proceeding in the Chapter I 1  bankruptcy case of OAN. In the 
adversary proceedings, the Company asserts that certain accounts receivable, and the proceeds thereof, which had been 
collected by OAN after the commencement of its Chapter 11 case, are not property of the Chapter 1 1 estate and belong 
solely to the Company. The amx." owed represents receivables that OAN collected on the Company's behalf pursuant to 
the parties' corctractuat agreement, but which OAN failed to tender. The Company contends that, at the time that OAN 
declared bankruptcy, OAN owed the Company an arnormt in excess of $37 rnillion. As of December 3'1 , 2002, the litigation is 
ongoing and the Company has reserved $1 4 million of the total receivables balance owed by OAN (see Note 2). The 
Corrtpany has valued the OAN receivables ai an estimated net realizable value based on current settlement offers from OAN 
lvlanagement believes li.  at, based on the ongoitig proceedings , such receivable will be collected 



The Company has been assessed approximately $1,092,000 in taxes by certain state tax authorities primarily as a result of 
sales and use tax compliance audits. The Company is contesting these assessmerits and based on current settlement 
discussions, management believes that the ultimate assesment will not exceed $300,000. Management also believes that 
the final resolution of these tax matters wit1 not have a significant impact to the financial position or results of operations of the 
Company. 

The Company is subject to certain legal proceedings and claims which arise in the normal course of its business. In the 
opinion of Ccmpany management, there is no pending or threatened litigation which will have a material effect on the 
Company's financial position OF results of operalionS+-.. 

9. SAVINGS PLAN 

On July 1 , 1996, the Company established a savings plan (the "Plan") under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
The Plan allows eligible employees to contribute up to 15 percent of their compefisation on a pre-tax basis, The Company 
matches 100 percent of the first $1,000 and 25 percent of the next $4,000 an employee contributes to the Plan, The 
maximum the Company will contribute to the Plan per employee is $2,000 per plan year. Company contributions are vested 
incrementally over three years. The charge to operations for the Company's matching contribution was approximately 
$99,000 and $88,000 in 2002 and 2001 respectively, 

1O.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

There have been no subsequent events that materially affect the Company's financial position as of December 31 2002 and 
the results of its operations for the year then ended 
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Long-distance Services 



101 0-1 23TM 

It's as easy as one-two-three, In an age where people 
struggle to remember dozens of numbers for telephones, 
Celt phones, passwords and more, simplicity IS a great 
advantage. AmericateI'9 flagship product - the 
101 0- 1 23'" dial-around calling code - combines the 
industry's most memory-friendly calling code with unbeatable 
rates and unparalleled bilingual customer service 

It is no worider that I01 0- 123'" had another- stellar yeat- 
in 2001. 

Propelled by effective marketing and customer loyalty, 
101 0-1 23's traffic grew by 25 percent in the last year, to 
more than 360 million minutes. Calls generated by 
1 01 0- 1 23'" now account for 49 percent of Arnericatel9 
international traffic. A total of 1.7 million customers chose 
101 0- I 23TM last year, with 500,000 using the sewice on 
an average month. 

Americatel's@ 101 0- 1 23TM is the clear favorite for Hispanics 
who maintain strong ties with their home countries in Latin 
America. Mexico, El Salvador, Guatemala, Cuba and 

12 



Honduras were the most popular calling destinations in 
2001. Los Angeles, New York, Miami, Chicago, San 
Francisco and buston were once again the cities where 
most of these calls originated. Thanks to a promotional 
pricing strategy focused on attracting new customers, 

DESTINATION' OF TRAFFIC 10f0-123 I 

Colombia, Argentina, Brazil and the Dominican Republic rat America 23 3% 

were the fastest-growing destination countries for 
101 0-1 23'" last year. 

Americatel's@ unwavering emphasis on price, service 
quality, cusiomer suppori ana innovative marketing helped 

,f Caribbean 8 7% 

to expand brand recognition for 101 0- 1 23'" during 2001 , 
to the point where it now leads customer awareness 
indicators in the Hispanic market. And since this market 
is among the fastest growing in the United States, 2002 
promises to be another strong year for AmericateW 
101 0-1 23'". 

ORIGIN OF TRAFFIC 1010-123 

Olher 40 4 % 

Los Angeles 20% A. 

No# York 9.5% 

San Francisco 7.8% Miami 8 0% 
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Americatel 's@ Prepaid Calling Cards 

Prepaid Calling Cards have emerged as a vital segment 
of the U.S. long distance market. Following the launch of 
its own line 'of Prepaid Calling Cards last year, AmericateP 
quickly established itself as a favored alternative among 
Hispanics in this highly contested market. 

First, AmericateP rolled out Prepaid Calling Cards that 
sold especially well in California and Illinois, with customers 
calling MWICG afid Central Americat: countries. In August 
2001 , the company launched Prepaid Calling Cards with 
no connection fee, which were also very successful. 

By year-end, Amxicatel's@ Prepaid Calling Card had 
generated $59.3 million in revenue, an increase of 579 
percent over the year 2000. More than 9.5 million cards 
were sold, for a total of 326 million completed long-distance 
minutes. Despite fierce competition, Amencatel's@ reputation 
for quality, promptness and support helped ptace its 
Prepaid Calling Cards in 1.5 million U.S. Hispanic homes. 
Most importantly, in 2001 Prepaid Calling Cards became 
a profitable line of business for Americatel@, 

During 2002, AmericateP wit1 build on thes-e 
accomplishments by launching a new line of regional 
Prepaid Calling Cards in additional U. S. markets. The 
appearance and pricing strategy of these cards will be 
customized to suit local market conditions. The goal is tc 
offer prepaid products that are specifically tailored tc 
particular segments wh i r  the Hispanic population, thereb) 
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expanding Americatel's@ market share nationwide. Once 
again, Americatel@ will build on its unique relationship with 
Hispanic consumers to set itself apart from the competition. 

This year, AmericateP will also create new distribution 
channels for its Prepaid Calling Cards. In addition to the 

: proven retail outlets, AmericateP will begin offering "Virtual" 
I Calling Cards through its website, 123.comT~. 

Subscribed Services 

a special Subscribed , AmericateP Business, product 
aimed at small and medium-sized bussines client, In 
November, it began offering Subscribed service with a 
direct billing option, which allows people, whose local 
operators are CLECs, to get a separate biil for long-distance 
service provided by Americatel'? The direct bitling option 
gives AmericateP a distinct advantage over competitors 
who have not yet established methods for billing long- 
distance service in this complicated but rapidly expanding 
market. 

Customers who have used AmericateI'P 101 0- 123'" are 
often so impressed with the service that they want to use 
AmericateP on a permarlent basis The company began 
offering Subscribed Long-distance Service in 2000 as a 
response to customer interest and this product has grown 
rapidly ever since. 

Last year, AmericateiY international Subscribed traffic 
increased by 380 percent, from '2 million minutes per 
month in December 2000 to aproximately 10 million in 
December 2001, This growth has come from four different 
hypes of Subscribed clients. 

Activated clients, who use AmericateP through their local 
phone company and dial 01 1 or 1 to place long-distance 
calls, increased from 30,000 to 88,000 during 2001. An 
additional 41,000 customers last year opted to become 
Subscribed dial-up clients,who access the service by 
dialling 1 Of  0- 1 23'" I In May 2001 , AmericateP launched 

The growing popularity of Americatel'P Subscribed services 
IS further proof that Hispanic consumers are eager to turn 
to the company for all their communications needs and 
has allowed to increase brand awareness and customer 
loyalty. During 2002, AmericateP will focus on identifying 
the specific features that are of most value to customers 
within each of their Subscribed products, be it price, 
service or ease-of-use. By listening to its customers and 
further fine-tuning this important new family of products, 
AmericateP will expand the definition of service. 

15 
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Internet Services 



ISP 
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The "dotcom" boom may be over, but AmericateP 
believes the Internet Age is just beginning --particularly 
for Hispanics. Year 2000 U.S. census figures indicate 
that only 28 percent of Hispanic households own a 
computer, compared to 52 percent for non-Latin White 
households. Similarly, I9  percent of Hispanic 
households use the Internet, compared to 40 percent in 
the non-Latin White population. 

Are Hispanics less interested in .the Internet than other 
consumers? On the contrary. Market research indicates 
that Hispanics are more eager than ever to go online- 
but only when they are offered the right combination of 
price, bilingual technical support and language-specific 
content. 

When AmericateP launched its ISP service in late 2000, 
we made sure it met all these criteria and more. Today, 
1 2 3 , c o m ~ ~  is known for fast, reliable connections over 
AmericateI'sB robust network. Its friendly, Spanish- 
speaking technical support staff puts customers at 
ease. And the web portal, 1 23.cOmTMI offers a rich array 
of bilingual content that can be customized to match the 
interests of individuals living in particular countries or 
U S. cities. 

Research conducted by AmericateP indicates that 8E 
percent of its ISP subscribers also chose to use the 



1 2 3 . ~ 0 ~ ~ ~  service-a powerful testament to brand 
loyalty in a market crowded with “free” e-mail providers. 
These surveys also indicate that price and bilingual 
content were the top reasons why subscribers chose 
AmericateP over other ISP. In the same survey, most of 
the respondents rated the quality of the Internet service 
as “good” or “excellent I ” 

During 2001, AmericateP launched an aggressive sales 
and marketing campaign to make it easier than ever for 
existing customers to go online and for new customers 
to sign-up for the 1 2 3 . ~ 0 ~ ~ ~  service. Recognizing that 
a large proportion of potential ISP customers did not 
have a computer at home, AmericateP introduced a 
“bundled PC” offer that includes a state-of-the-art 
computer, color printer, technical support, 12 month 
warranty and a year’s worth of Internet access. 
Subscribers can also receive 12 months of additional 
Internet access for free, through an innovative program 
whereby they pay for one month’s access and get the 
following month at no charge, 

- 

This strategy was so successful that today 85 percent 
of ISP customers have purchased the service through 
the bundled PC package. Dufing 2002, AmericateP 

\ plans to continue building the subscriber baie through 
innovative marketing, with a view of consolidating its 

1 Position as the preferred ISP among Hispanics. 
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1 23.COMTM - Americatel’s@ Communications Portal 

In addition to subscriber revenue, Americatel’s@ Internet 
Service provides a powerful channel for promoting the 
company’s traditional communicatron products, That is 
why the website, 123.com’~, was conceived from the 
start as a “communications portal” for the Hispanic 
community. The concept is simple: offer affordable 
Internet access combined with attractive bilingual 
content and then introduce Gisitors to Americatek? 
other products. 

Today our web content platform, developed and 
administered entirely by Americatel’s@ technical staff, 
features news, sports, entertainment , immigration 
materials, weather and more-all continually updated by 
specialized editors in the U.S. and Latin America. 
Visitors can customize news content by country of origin 
or U.S. city of residence, search job listings, get driving 
directions or sign-up for 1 23 .comTM Internet Service, 
among many other activities. Throughout 2001 I we 
expanded the scope and variety of content and 
strengthened the 1 2 3 . ~ 0 ” ~  portal through strategic 
alliances with Service providers focused on the 
Hispanics community. The results were steadily 
increasing traffic and a growing percentage of repeat 
visitors. 
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These initiatives will follow Aimxicatel's@ proven strategy 
of offering value-added setvices to existing customers. 
Whether by bundling interactive English-language 
classes with its PCIISP contracts or by conducting on- 
line sales of AmericateP Prepaid Calling Cards through 
123 comTM, thts strategy has consistently shown that 
customer loyalty provides an effective avenue for 
expansion for Americatel". Its track record of quickly 
fielding multi-functional product teams capable of rolling 
out these value-added services makes AmericateP 
confident that 2002 will be another stellar yezr for 
1 23.COrnT". 

FREE WEB MAIL'S BY STATE 

Rest of US 36% 

California 21% 

During 2002, 123.comTM plans to build on its 
interactive content platform by introducing a variety of e- 
commerce applications that will reinforce the link to 
Americatel's@ other products. In addition to ISP and 
Subscribed Long -distance products, AmericateP plans 
to offer Internet - based long -distance services . 
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Advertising 

AmericateP relies on cutting -edge advertising to connect 
with its customers, By combining world-class production 
values with messages that resonate with specific Hispanic 
communities, Americatel’s@ ads consistently stand out 
from the competition. 

During 2001 , Arnericatel’s@ spokesman, television 
personality and philanthropist Don Francisco, provided the 
unifying theme in a variety of campaigns supporting new 
and existing products. Don Francisco has the unique virtue 
of having built one of the few truly pan-Hispanic television 
audiences in the history of the medium. 

Last year AmericateP reached an estimated 15 3 million 
U.S. Hispanics with various mass media marketing 
campaigns. Advertising for its flagship product, 
101 0- I 23’“ was revised to stress this product‘s emergence 
as the first choice of Hispanics. ~ ‘ 

According to a market penetration study conducted in 
October 2001 by Cultural Access Group, a division of 
Access Worldwide, advertising related to 101 0-1 23’” 
produced a total brand recognition level of 94 percent in 
Amencatel’s@ target market, along with an overall advertising 
recognition level of 88 percent. kese  figures indicate that 
AmerkateP is clearly succeeding in its goal of being the 
most recognized brand in its market. 

=+.- 
=E 

During 2001, AmericateP also launched a campaign for 
AmericateI’s@ ISP and Internet portal services was also 
anchored by Don Francisco, who emphasized the 
importance of computer literacy for Hispanic children while 
promoting Amencatel’@ budget-friendly PCAntemet product 
bundle. 

Promotions 

All of Arriericatel’s@ marketing efforts make careful use of 
dates and events that are especially meaningful to its 
customers. These range from traditional dates such as 
Valentine‘s Day, Mother‘s Day, Father’s Day and Christmas 
to the Independence days of the Hispanic nations from 
which most of our customers originate. 

During 2001 , Americatela expanded its efforts to sponsor 
arid participate in festivals and special events, These 
included an “AmericateP Soccer Cup” that featured 
prominent soccer teams from Honduras and Mexico, and 
a presenting sponsor role at the Grand Prix of Miami, 
where the company provided special support to Eliseo 
Salazar, the only Hispanic driver in the race. 

During 2001 , AmericateP participated in over 100 events, 
“Calle 8“ being the largest, with over 1 million participants. 

Corporate Relations 

Amencatel‘s@ corporate identity- the image it projects to - 
its customers and the wider Hispanic community-is a 
vital component of its growth strategy. 
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AmericateP stands out frorri its competitors because of 
the unique role it plays in the Hispanic community. The 
company is viewed as an ally and advocate of Hispanics, 
most particularly of those who have recently emigrated to 
the U.S. This special relationship is not an accident, It is 
the fruit of a multitude of initiatives with Latin American 
governments, state and governments in the US., chambers 
of commerce, national community groups and the media 

During 2001 , AmericateP carried out 60 events that helped 
to strengthen its ties with various Hispanic communities. 
The company worked with t he  American Red Cross to 
raise funds for the victims of earthquakes in Peru and El 
Salvador, flooding in Houston and the tragic events of 
September 1 1 . AmericateP donated special toll-free 
telephone lines to the embassies of El Salvador, Guatemala 
and Peru for the purpose of disseminating crucial 
immigration information AmericateP sponsored the 
publication of booklets and brochures for immigrants for 
the embassies of Mexico, Honduras, Guatemala, El 
Salvador, Peru and 8olivia. 

Special Recognition 

AmericateP also had the honor of receiving a number of 

Washington, D.C, The web site provides extensive 
information of El Salvador and contact information for all 
the country's consulates in the US.  

Last year AmericateP was also honored by several U.S. 
local chambers of commerce in which i l  actively participates. 
in recognition of the company's growth and its prc"nent 
role in Florida, the Greater Miami Chamber of Commerce 
named AmericateP the eighth largest Hispanic business 
in the state. In California, the Hollywood Chamber of 
Cornmerce honored Americatel's@ spokesperson , Mario 
Kreutzberger, with a star on the Hollywood Walk of Fame. 
As one of the most visible and respected television 
personalities in the Spanish speaking community world, 
Mr. Kreutzberger (known as "Don Francisco") has been a 
central part of Amencatel's@ communications strategy. 

personal and official recognitions for its contributions to 
Hispanic causes. Among the most noteworthy was a visit 
by Salvadorian president Francisco Flores to Americatel's@ 
corporate offices last July. President Flores praised 
Amencatel's@ long-standing efforts to support Salvadorian 
immigrants in the U.S. and he unveiled a web site that the 
company designed for the El Salvador Embassy in 
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Americatel's@ Sales 

I 

When it comes to sales, Americatel@ stands out from the 
crowd. The company's sales staff understands the 
diverse U.S. Hispanic communities better than any 
competitor, and it uses that knowledge to craft unique 
campaigns that connect with customers and 
consistently exceed targets. 

During 2001 I Amer icatells@ sales staff undertook a 
number of initiatives to further- diversify the company's 
sales channels and meet arnbitious client growth anu 
market share targets. The sales team also played a 
crucial role in the introduction of several new products, 
including the 1 23,comTM Internet Service, the bundled 
PC/ISP product, Prepaid Calling Cards with no 
connection fees, and direct billed long distance service, 

AmericateP enhanced its telemarketing , direct mail and 
e-mail sales efforts in 2001, using a variety of marketing 
intelligence techniques to increase the segmentation 
and specialization of these efforts, Americatel's@ 
telemarketing team, which consists of more than 300 
agents operating through call centers in Chile, the U.S. 
and the Dominican Republic, made a special effort to 
increase the sales of Prepaid Calling Cards, the new ISP 
service and the bundled PC/ISP product. These efforts 
were leveraged through marketing agreements with local 
distributors in the top Hispanic markets. 

Among the year's most significant accomplishments 
were more than 100,000 verified Long-distance sales 
for subscribed dkhk and the sate of more than 9 million 
Prepaid Calling Cards that generated $59 million in 
revenue. 



P 

Americatel@ has set aggressive sales targets for 2002. 
This will require an even more effective use of 
Americatel's@ existing sales channels through the 
adoption of a Customer Relationship Management 
system, plus the development of new sales channels 
through agent programs, online distribution, strategic 
alliances and cross-selling among the company's 
products. 

If past is precedent, AmericateW sales staff will once 
again rise to the challenge. 

Customer Service 

Customer service is a priority at AmericateP, Many 
companies in the US.  offer bilingual customer service 
as an afterthought-if they offer it at all. But AmericateP 
knows that many of its customers have had negative 
experiences when trying to obtain clear information 
about a product or service in their own language. That's 
why they go the extra mile to show customers that they 
will be treated differently at Americatel? 

Bilingual customer service agents are available around 
the clock, seven days a week. Each of them has been 
thoroughly trained and is prepared to answer detailed 
questions about all of Americatel's@ long-distance and 
Internet products. 

Tb keep pace with the growth of its long-distance 
customers in 2001, AmericateP doubled the size of its 
customer service staff. It has now surpassed the 

industry standard by providing more than 95 percent 
attention level for its dial-around and long-distance 
services. In mid-2001 , Americatel's@ customer service 
agents also began handling fulfillment tasks for the 
company's new bundled ISP/PC product. 

In order to keep up with increased inquiries, Amematel@ 
installed a new call center in 2001 to complement its 
existing facility. In addition to ensuring prompt, top-quality 
responses to its growing volume of technical support 
calls, this facility will be used to handle a variety of 
incoming and outgoing sales and marketing functions I 
AmericateP has always monitored its customer service 
calls with a state-of-the-art quality control program. 
During 2002, the company plans to strengthen quality 
monitoring by installing a new "Executive Connect" Agent 
Monitoring System. This system will allow AmericateP to 
monitor both pre-recorded and live agent calls and 
communicate evaluated results to its call center 
operations managers for the necessary reinforcement 
and improvement actions. Amencatel@ is also preparing 
to integrate its existing quality control program with a new 
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system 
during 2002. 

These new systems are complex and will require 
renewed training efforts for all our staff , but our purpose 
is simple: to consisteritly surpass customer 
expectations and make AmericateP synonymous with 
friendly, efficient customer service. 

.. 2.- . ... 
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Carrier Services 

In 2001 I AmericatelB generated more than one billion 
international long-distance minutes for the first time. Passing 
the one billion minute milestone put AmericateP among 
the 10 largest U,S. -based carriers and it made AmericaieP 
one to watch in the Telecom Industry. 

Arnericatel's@ Carrier Sewices division is a crucial part of 
this growth, accounting for one-third of the company's 
international traffic and $53 million In revenue during 2001 ,. 
Carrier Services was formed in 1998 to leverage the 
infrastructure of AmericateI's@ regional partners, ENTEL 
Chile and AmericateP El Salvador. Two years late1 
AmericateP Guatemala and AmericateP Peru were addec 
to this partnership. As one of the three nodes in ENTEk 
corporate Wholesale Traffics Division , Carrier Services is 
able to terminate a growing volume of third-party traffic 
while acting as a preferred broker for wholesale minutes 



Today, Carrier Setvices is one the largest buyers and sellers 
of wholesale minutes in Amenca. The division moved nearly 
350 million long-distance minutes for 100 corporate 
customers in 2001 and is poised for continued growth 
this year. 

During 2001 , several large players disappeared from the 
international long-distance wholesale market, leading to 
a shakeout in the industry as a whole. Americatel's@ 
management anticipated much of this turbulence and took 
preemptive steps to renew much of its wholesale client 
portfolio. As a result, the Carrier Services Division not only 
maintained a stable position last year-it was also able to 
increase its business volume with relatively low risk. On 
the buyer side of the business AmericateP became a 
more significant player, both because of its wholesale 
business volume and the steady growth in its 101 0- 1 23'" 
traffic. kis extra buying power, combined with the addition 
of new high-quality, low-rate routes, ultimately benefitted 
both the retail and wholesale sides of Americatel's@ 
business, 

Last year, Americatel" also added a robust IP platform to 
its network. This has given the 'company more flexibility 
md lower costs. During 2002, Amencatel's@ Cartier Sen/iCes 
hill continue to give the company a competitive advantage 
by Connecting hundreds of destinations with low-cost, 
high-quality routes and by seeking out new opportunities 
to optimize Americatel's@ network. 
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infrastructure and Facilities 

Facilities for New York Switch 

New York Facilities for 123.com 

Americatel's@ employees have always thrived on 
unexpected challenges, but riothing could have prepared 
them for the events of September 1 I , 2001 . 

One of the central pieces of AmericateI'P network 
infrastructure - an international gateway switching facility in 
New York City-is situated at 60 Hudson Street, a few 
blocks away from the site of the former Wgrld Trade Center. 
Even before Americatel's@) employees could tully 
comprehend the horrific images broadcast on the morning 
of the attacks, they were forced to think about ensuring 
uninterrupted service for their customers. Since the 
switching facility was within the no-access perimeter 
established in the afterr nath of the attacks, AmericateW 
engineers had to devise solutions remotely The situation 
presented the ultimate test for the technical staff, which 
worked around the clock to manage AmericatekP traffic 
despite the chaos in New Yo&. 

It is a testament to the dedication and professionalism of its 
employees th5t none of ArnericateW sewices suffered 
interruptions. 

ArnericateP is equipped with fully-redundant electronic 
components including, but not limited to, IBS/IDWCM-IDR 
compatibte satellrte modems, High Power hplifiers (HPA) 
and Low Noise Amplifiers (LNA). The equipment is diligently 
configured arid maintained 24x7 to guarantee the highest 
level of reliability. In addition to its base salellite 
telecommunications capabilities, AmericateI'P Miami 



teleport is interconnected to the submarine fiber optic cable 
systems located off Florida's East Coast I State-of-the-art 
T1 /El /DS3/OC3/OC48 multiplexers, VSAT hubs and carrier 
class IP routers platform are also housed at Americatel's* 
Miami Teleport facility A high-capacity Unintermptible Power 
Supply (UPS) and an electrical power generator guarantee 
the continuous operation of mission-critical 
telecommunications equipment at the Miami teleport, should 
a power outage affect the facility. Together, these resources 
make it possible for Amencatel@ to provide reliable and fully 
integrated telecommunications sewices but as the events of 
last September made clear, people are the most vital 
component of Americatel's@ infrastructure. 

fiber Optic Cables 

In order to offer clear sound, reliable connections and low 
I' prices, AmericateP makes sophisticated use of world-class 

fiber optic and satellite transmission resources. Ever since it 
i. began operations, the company has leveraged the fiber optic 
EL resources of its parent Company, ENTEL Chile, for consistent E 

Competitive advantage. 
B p 
c CWently, Amencatel@ uses the following Atlantic and Pacific 5 
5; Ocean submarine fiber optic cable systems. Latin American 

Nautilus (LAN), Global Crossing's Pan American Crossing 

g Crossing (MAC), Maya-1 , Americas I I ,  Columbus 111, Unisur 
and Ttansandino. The Columbus Ill cable provides a unique 
connection between the U S  and Italy, ensuring high-quality 
connections to the rest of Europe, as well as Africa and the 
Middle East. 

(PAC), South American Crossing (SAC) and Mid Atlantic 

The LAN and MAC/PAC/SAC fiber optic submarine cables 
widely connect AmericateIB with ENTEL Chile and enable 
additional connections to Mexico, South American countries 
such as Peru, Bolivia, Colombia and Venezuela and Panama 
in Central America. The Maya-I submarine cable system 
provides Amencatel@ with exceptional connectivity to Mexico, 
Colombia and Central American countries such as Honduras, 
Panama and Costa Rica. AmericateP also enjoys the unique 
advantage of a point of presence in the APT OJUS submarine 
cable landirig station in Hollymxd, Florida This link povides 
the company with direct connections to the Maya- 1 , Americas 
II and Columbus 111 submarine cable systems. 

Satellites 

To further extend its reach and provide redundancy in the 
event of cable failures, AmericateP has developed robust 
satellite resources, Amencatel@ was one of the first carriers in 
the United States to sign a contract with INTELSAT for Level 
3 Direct Access to international satellite services -an option 
made available in the United States in December 1999, 
Cornsat, the US. govetnment-sanctioned satellite organization, 
was formerly the only link to INTELSATs global satellite network. 

With INELSAT service, Amencatel@ not only provides backup 
to its facilities operations, but also interconnects directly with 
70 countries around the world. 

By constantly readjusting and optimizing the use of its cable 
and satellite resources, Amencatel@ IS able to provide industry- 
leading service, 
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Billing and Collections 

To keep operating costs ai a minimum and maximize 
shareholder value, AmericateP outsources most billing 
and collection functions to established external providers 
who provide coverage for more than 1,300 North American 
local telephone companies (LECs). The billirig and 
collections department at AmericateP IS responsible for 
monitoring, controlling and analyzing information pertaining 
to all the billing provider's activities. This includes information 
on remittances, service charges, unbiliable accoilnts, bad 
debts and account adjustments. The department is also 
responsible for all Exchange Message Interface (EMI) traff IC 

control , initiating blocking procedures for unbillabtes and 
rejected EMls as needed. For customers who live in areas 
where they cannot be billed through a LEG, AmwicateP 
also operates a direct billing program that makes it possible 
to use AmericateP as a long-distance carrier. 

Miami Facilities, Satellite Station 
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Revenue Protection 

P,mericatel@ uses sophisticated software systerris to 
protect its revenue, The company's Revenue Protection 
Department employs an online call detail report (CDR) 
system to continually monitor and analyze traffic in 
search of possible fraudulent calls, This system tracks 
the duration, frequency arid timing of calls and 
generates alerts whenever an abnormality is detected. 
Analysis tools are also used to study customers' calling 
patterns by origin and call destination 

During 2001, AmericateP invested in numerous 
enhancements to its fraud detection systems. The 
company now has a greater capacity to store 
information related to alerts and CDRs and a more direct 
method for blocking accounts that have been identified 
as fraudulent. AmericateI'9 software is now also 
capable of esi-ablishing alarm pat ameters- with much 
greater precision and flexibility, using variables such as 
time of day, week or month and call destination, length 
and cost. Continuous use of these systems has allowed 
AmericateP to greatly reduce blocking response time 
when fraudulent calls are detected, resulting in 
substantial monthly savings. 

During 2002, AmericateP plans to further hone its 
revenue protection capacity by adopting emerging 
technologies .that make it possible to anticipate fradulent 
calls by combining customer data from numerous 
sources and thereby identifying calling patterns and 
tendencies. 

Human Resources 

The growth of our business, from our traditional services 
and also our new product lilies, such as: 

Prepaid Calling Cards and ISWPortal Services continued 
to create a great demand for qualified individuals. 

During fiscal year 2001, Human Resources met the 
challenge and increased AmericateI's@ workforce by 25 
percent, to a total of 160 employees. 

Americatelm is en equal opportunity employer, and is in full 
compliance with its Affirmative Action Plan. The Company 
provides a comprehensive benefit package to its 
erriployees. 

The continued grcwv-th of Americatel's@ long-distance call 
volume has also yompted the company to increase its 
revenue protection staff. New fraud analysts hired in 2001 
now make it possible to ensure full coverage during 
Peak usage times and to maintain 24x7 coverage. 
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When being second is not enough 

42 

By Konrad Burchardt 

At AmericateP', we ( w e  competition Perhaps it has 
something to do with our corporate lineage. Our parerit 
company, Entel Chile, played a pioneering role in lobbying 
for a deregulated and tully competltive telecorrlmur Iications 
market in Chile - back when such notions were considered 
t-reretical. Once competitiorl became the norrri, Entel 
wasted no time in becoming the dominant Ct-iikar; provider 
of dornestic and international long-distance, prepaid calling 
cards, Internet access, value added services and mobile 

- communications I 

Americatel's@ founders brought that same competitive 
instinct to the United States. When we set out to become 
the number one provider of telecommunications services 
for the U.S. Hispanic market-in a field dominated by 
giants -many o6servers chuckled and shook their heads 
But today, after five years of uninterrupted growth, the 
notion no longer seems far-fetched. 



AmericateP is now the leading provider of calling code- 
based long distance service among US.  Hispanics, with 
a 14 percent market share. We are the second largest 
provider of general telecommunications services in hispanic 
market. In addition to long-distance telephony we offer 
prepaid calling cards, serve the special needs of large 
corporaie clients, and are rolling out a full complement of 
Internet services. 

The goal will be to become the leader in our market. The 
motive, of course, will be to increase profitability. But the 
satisfaction will come from serving a thriving Hispanic 
population, from being identified with its triumphs and 
traditions. From proving that passion, dedication and hard 
work, we hope to make a difference for families, 
communities and companies. 

But the truth is we aren't satisfied. Market leadership IS 
habit-forming, and our experience in Chile makes us 
unwilling to see AmericateP in the number two slot. That 
is why Amencatelm is determined to b'e the leading provider 
of general telecommunications services to the US Hispanic 
market by 2003. 

How will we do it? By knowing our customers better than 
any competitor. By using that knowledge to build 
relationships rooted in quality service, great rates and an 
ear for to the cultural and linguistic uniqueness of different 
Hispanic national groups. We will also succeed by making 
sophisticated use of technology, both in our products and 
In management, 

Presided/ Director 
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Despite a multitude of challenges, Amerrcatel'@ cornpleted 
its fifth corisecutive year of strong growth in 2001 I During 
a period in which many telecomrriunicatioris firiris suflered 
crippling losses, Americatel's@ revenues increased by 49 
percent over 2000, to $31 4.5 million Strong demand for 
our existing products, combined with the launch of several 
successful new services, helped the company to weather 
an econorriic downturn that directly affected the Hispanic 
kiouseholds that make-up AmericateI'sP core market. 

AmericateP was riot entirely imriiune to the turbulence 
affecting its industry. The chapter 1 1 filing of OAbI, the 
company's former collections contractor, forced AmericateP 
to write down $1 4 rnillion in bad debts. As a result, after- 
tax income f o t m l  was a modest $388,W- a regrettable 
departure from the trend established in the year 2000. 

Revenues 

Americatel's@ 101 0- 1 23'" service continued to be its 
flagship product in 2001, generating $160.4 million of 
the total $314.5 millon in revenues, a 31 percent 
increase over sales of the same product in 2000a 
International long-distance calls were once again thE 
most important source of revenue within the I 0 1  0- 1 23'" 
service, generating $140.1 million, up 33 percent from 
the previous year. A total of 368 million minutes 0 
international long-distance were logged over I 0 1  0-1 23" 
during the year, an 27 percent increase. 
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Prepaid Calling Cards became AmericatekP second 
most important source of revenue in 2001, less than a 
year after they were introduced to the market. These 
cards generated $59.3 million in revenue, up 579 
percent irom 2000. Some 326 milliorr long-clistaricc 
minutes were origiriat ed with AmericateP Prepaid 
Calling Cards, 41 0 percent more than the previous year 

AmericateIY PSTN services handled 334 million 
minutes and generated $53 4 millon for the  company in 
2001, an I ?  percent revenue drop from 2000 
Americatel'sm participation in Worldnet Corporate, which 
enables the company to act as one of the three nodes 
in Grupo ENTEL's corporate wholesale trading arid 
terminate third-party traffic, is the basis for the continued 
productivity of this service segment. 

Among the stellar performers in 2001 was Americatel's@ 
subscribed long-distance service. Launched only two 
Years ago, this service produced $26.9 rriillun in 
revenues during 2001, a 651 percent increase over the 
Previous year. More than 100,000 customers signed up 
for subscribed long-distance last year, generating 1 12 
million minutes. 

The company's private services, including pfly- liries 
ami very small aperture (VSAT) satellite connectjons, 
earned $10.9 millori for AmericateP in 2001 or 25 
Percent less than 2000. Finally, AmericatekP new ISP 

Internet portal services, which were launched in the 
latter half of 200-1 , generated $3.3 million by year-end ~ 

i: a Promising beginning in a highly competitive market 
$ 

Cost of Sales 

Americatel's@ cost of revenue increased by 69 percent 
in 2001, to $2651~8 million, impelled primarily by growing 
exper?ditures related to its two principal products, 
101 0- 1 23'" arid Prepaid Galling Cat ds.  The $1 4 millon 
write-down described above, required by the 
bankruptcy of OAN, Americatel's@ former collections 
contractor, contt ibuted significantly to the additional 
revenue costs 

Administrative and Sales Expenses 

AmericatekP Adrriinistrative and Sale Expenses reached 
$55 1 millon in 2001, up 17 percent from the previous 
year. Costs associated with launching the company's 
new ISP and Internet portal products, particularly those 
related to advertising, accounted fur the bulk of this 
increase. 

Operational Income 

As a result of the developments described above, 
AmericateP had an operating loss of $-6,4 million in 
2001 , which is equivalent to a 201 percent drop in 
operating income over 2000. 

EBITDA 

ArnericateI'sP EBITDA in 2001 amounted to $- 1.5 millon, 
a drop of I 17 percent from the previous year, 
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, DeloitteBTouche LLP 
Certihed. Pu blic Accountants 

200 South Biscayne Boulevard 
Miami, Honda 33131-2310 

’ Suite 400 

Tel. (305) 372-3100 
Fax {305) 372-31 60 
www.us deloitte cam 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
AmericatelB Corporation: 

Deloitte 
&Touche 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Americatel@ Corporation (the “Company”) as of 
December 31,  2001 and 2000, and the related statements of income and cash flows for the years-then ended 
(all expressed in U.S. dollars) which, as described in Note 1 ,  have been prepared on the basis of accounting 
principles generally accepted in Chile. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits i n  accordance with auditing standards generally accepted i n  the United States of 
America and in Chile. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in  the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Company at December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Chile. 

, 

January 25, 2002 w 

Deloitte 
Touche 
Tohmatsu 



Americatel Corporation 
Balance Sheets 
December 31,2001 and 2000 

Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Gash eaukalents 

Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$7,979,360 m 2001 and $4,225,772 in 2000 
Prepard expenses and other current assets 
Deferred tax asset, net 
Due from related parties 

$ 

2001 

1,379A65 

50,744,691 
3,769,492 
8,642,000 
1,187,176 

2000 

$ 6,075,705 

47,655,729 
2,370,268 

327,501 

Total current assets 65,722,824 56,429,203 

OTHER RECEtVABLE, NET 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS, net 

23,169,092 

16,699,812 

4,058,65 1 

17,137,086 

3,772,992 

Total $ 109,650,379 $ 77,339,281 

Liabilities and stockholders' equity 

CURRENT LIABILmIES: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenues 
Revolving lines of credit agreements 
Current portion of obligations under capital leases 
Due to stockholder and related parties, net 

$ 45,016,054 $ 39,388,343 
7,521,823 3,685,692 
7,000.000 

191,102 314,986 
23,934,194 8,222,721 

To tal c u r re n t I i a bi I i t  i e s 83,663,173 51,611,742 

OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES, NET 94,379 197,254 

OTHER LONG-TERM LiABlUTlES 24,083 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 8) 

Stockholders' Equity: 
Common stock, $.01 par value, 150,000 shares authorized; 
61,854 shares issued and outstanding 
Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated deficit 

61 9 
62,371,934 
(36,479,726) 

61 9 
62,371,934 
(36,866,35 1 ) 

Total stockholders' equity 25,892,827 25,506,202 

Total $ 109,650,379 $ 77,339,281 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Statements of Income 
Years Ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

2001 2000 

COSTS AND EXPENSES: 
Cost of revenues 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 

259,589,412 
61,304,789 

157,363,271 
47,208,130 

~ _ _ - -  _____--__------ _- __--- 

.- 
Totat 320,894,20 1 204,571,401 

(LOSS) INCOME FROM OPERATIONS (6,369,244) 6,333,872 

__--_ ________I__- ___II~ ____ 

OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME: 
Interest income 21 5,522 353,316 
Interest expense (1 ,192,880) 
Other expense (404,616) (75,332) 

Otlset- (expense) income, net ( 1,381,974) 277,984 

(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE BENEFIT FROM 

_.I___ __-- -_I_-.-__ _ _ _ - L _ ~ -  .--~- 

__I_ ____ii_______l_ ~ II__.______I_-__ ___.I 

(7,751,218) 6,6i 1,856 __ (PROVISION FOR) INCOME TAXES 

(225,800) BENEFIT FROM (PROVISION FOR) INCOME TAXES 

NET INCOME $ 386,625 $ 6,386,056 

~ - _ - -  -___I 

._.-I - 
8,137,843 

- 
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Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

2001 2aoo 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Gash provided from. 
Receipts from customers 
Interest received 
Other income received 
Cash disbursed to. 
Payments to suppliers and erriployees 
Interest paid 
Income taxes paid 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of property and equipment 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 
Proceeds from BCI advance (Note 2) 
Payments on BCI advance 
Proceeds from BCI loan (Note 2) 
Net borrowings under revolving h e  of credit agreements 
Net borrowings from stockholder 
Net cash provided by finaricing activities 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVAL€NTS, END OF YEAR 
~ - ~ _ _ _  ~.___^ 

$ 244,139,355 $ 196,218,146 
2 15,522 353,316 

4,125 

(270,296,856) 
(1 ,168,880) 

(677,626) 

(1 89,553,892) 

(225,800) 

(27,788,485) 6,795,895 

(4,507,755) 

7,000,000 
(3,500,Cm) 
10,000,000 
7,000,000 
7,100,000 

27,600,000 
(4,696,240) 
6,075,705 

(9,971,425) 

6,505,837 

6,505,837 
3,330,307 
2,745,398 

$ 1,379,465 $ 6,075,705 

RECONClLlATlON OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH 
(USED IN) PROVIDEO BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) 
provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for doubtful accounts 
Benefit from deferred income taxes 
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Increase in receivables 
Increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Increase in deferred revenues 
Increase (decrease) in due to stockholder 
and related parties, net 
(Decrease) increase in other long-term liabilities 

$386,625 

4,659,3 70 
23,992,95 1 
(8,642 ,m) 

(63,751,005) 
(1,399,224) 
5,627,711 
3,836,131 

7,757,798 
(250,84 2) 

$6,386,056 

2,719,781 
6,912,539 

(23,558,058) 
(1 , 1 28,397) 

16,470,327 
3,685,692 

(4,576,774) 
184,729 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (27,788,485) $ 6,795,895 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
Years Ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

1. ORGANIZATION, BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization - hericatel@ Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in Delaware on April 29, 1992. In 1996, the Company became a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Entel International B.V.1 Corporation (“Entel BVt”), which IS a wholty-owned subsidiary of Empresa Nacional de 
Telecomunicaciones S.A (“Entel”). On July 22, 1997, the Company and Entel BVI entered into a stock purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) 
with Seaquins Investments S A (“Seaquins”) and Gadol, Inc (“Gadol”). The effective date of the Agreement was May 30, 1997. Pursuant to 
the Agreement, the Company issued and Seaquins purchased 5,498 1 I shares, representing 10 percent of the total outstaridmg shares of the 
Company’s common stock after the issuance The total corrsideration was $4,625,000 In addition, Gadol was granted an option to purchase 
6,872.64 newly issued shares of the Company, at an initial option price of $4,625,000 plus an interest factor of 70 percent per annum, based 
on the number of days elapsed during the option period. During December 2000, Gadol exercised the entire option givlng 4,810.84 shares to 
Brundidge Investments, Ltd. and retaining 2,061.8 shares As of December 31 ,.2007, Gadol, Brundidge Investments, Ltd and Seaquins, in 
aggregate, own and control 20% of the outstanding common shares of the Company 

Description of Business ~ The C s q x ”  is a facilities-based telecommunication company based in Miami, providing business services between 
the U S . ,  Latin America and the Cambbean over satellite and fiber optic cable. The Company’s public long-distance customers are able to access 
its network by dialing a unique carrier identification code (“CIC code“) before dialing the number they are calling Using a CiC code to access 
the Company‘s network IS known as a “dial around” or “casual calling” because customers can use the Company‘s services at any time without 
changing their existing long distance carrier To accomplish this, the Company acquired the rights for the CIC code “1 0 10-1 23 I’ 

In January 2001, the Company launched 123.com, an Internet service provider and portal geared towards the US. Hispanic market 

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in Chile (“generally accepted accounting principles”), 

Use of Estimates - Management of the Company has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Significant estimates include, among others, the useful lives of property and equipment and the allowance for doubtful accounts. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash Equivalents - The Company considers cash on hand and in banks and all highly liquid instruments purchased with an original maturity of 
three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Revenue Recognition - The Company recognizes revenues from “dial around” services and carrier-to-carrier activities based upon the minutes 
of traffic processed and established rates. Other service revenues are recognized when the services are provided in xcordqce with contractual 
terms. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had approximately $7,522,000 and $3,686,000, respectively, in deferred revenues 
primarily from the sale of prepaid calling cards. 

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation on property and equipment is computed under the straight- 
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance 
expenditures are charged to income as incurred. 

Other Assets - Other assets consist principally of licenses The cost of licenses is amortized under the straight-line method over the term of 
the respective license agreement. 

Income Taxes - The Company records income taxes in accordance with Technical Bulletin No. 60 of Chilean accounting standards which parallels 



Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS’) No 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Under SFAS No. 109, income taxes are accounted 
for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences 
between the financial statement caving amounts of existing assets and Irabilittes and their respective tax bases and to operating loss carryforwards 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates IS recognized in 

income in the period that includes the enactment date 

2. AGREEMENT FOR CUSTOMER BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS 

During June 2001 , the Company engaged Billing Concepts, Inc (“BCV’) to handle the Company‘s customer billings and collections for its 
“10 10-1 23” service. Pursuant to the agreement, BCI performs the following functions/services for the Company 

Processes and transmits the Company’s “1 0 10- 1 23” billing records to the appropriate local exchange carrier (“LEG”) for billing and 
collection; 

Provides customer service procedures, 

Provides electronic information and reports to the Company; 

Processes payments received from the LECs, determines required holdbacks, fees, taxes, and other relevant charges; 

Remits net proceeds to the Company, 

Determines the amounts of bad debts from the “1 0 10-1 23’ service, and 

Performs other relevant services 

Funds collected by BCI are remitted to the Company on the first Tuesday following the expiration of seven business days after receipt by BCI of 
the funds from a LEG As of December 31, 2001, the receivable from BCI amounted to approximately $36,173,000. 

In June 2001, BCI provided the Company with a $7,000,000 interest free advance The terms of the advance required 25% payments, each 
due in August 2001, November 2001, February 2002 and May 2002. The repayment of the advance is to be made from the collections on the 
trade receivables that collateralized the advance. As of December 31, 2001 I the outstanding balance on the advance is $3,500,000. In July 
2001, BCI also provided the Company with a $lO,ooO,OOO loan beanng interest at prime plus 4% (1 1 % at December 31, 2001). The loan matures 
at the end of the three-year agreement with 8CI. The repayment of the loan is to be made from the collections on the trade receivables that 
collateralized the advance. As of December 31, 2001, the outstanding balance of the loan is $10,000,000. The advance and loan gives BCI 
the right of setoff against the receivable otherwise due from BCI and, accordingly, the amounts have been netted for purposes of the financial 
statement presentation. The receivable from BCI, net of the advance and loan, are included in trade receivables in the accompanying 2007 
balance sheet in the amount of $22,673,000 

- 

Prior to June 2001, the Company had engaged OAN Service, Inc (“OAN“) to handle the Company’s customer billings and collections for its 
“10 10-1 2 3  service. During May 2001 , OAN filed for Chapter 1 1 bankruptcy/reorganization, at which time the Company’s receivable from OAN 
totaled approximately $37,169,000, The Company has initiated an adversary proceeding in the Chapter 1 1 case against OAN (see Note 8). 
The Company has reclassified the OAN receivable, net of an atlowance for bad debts of $1 4,000,000 (see Note 8), to Other Receivable, net in 
the accompanying 2001 balance sheet. 
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3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 

Property and equtpment, net as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 consist of the following. 
Estimated 

2001 2000 Useful Lives 

$ 732,700 land 
Building and improvements 3,244,99 1 
Telecommunications equipment 23,309,462 
Office equipment and software 2,378,035 
Furniture and fixtures 390,958 
Automobiles 14,580 

30,070,726 

.-.- 9; 732,700 
3,166,703 

20,040,497 
1,996,676 

231.847 

26,171,423 

7-40 years 
510years ‘ 

4-5 years 
7-10 years 

5 years 

--__-_-- ___-I___cl__l____~- 
l____l_- 

Less accumulated depreciation (13,370,914) (9,034,337) 

$ 16,699,812 $ 17,137,086 Property and equipment, net 
_cI.-_-. ____I______i___” ._--- l_l- 

~ _ _ _ _ _  ________I_-- ~ _l__l_ 

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decwnber 31,201 and 2030 amounted to approximatety $4,361 ,ooO and $2,571 ,ooO, respectlively For the 
years ended December 31,2001 and 2000, Gost of sales includes approximately $l,458,oCO and $929,030, respectively, of depreciation expense related 
to m c e s  rendered during the year k e  telecwnrcuniahons equipment owned by the Company IS subject to rapid technological obsolescence; therefwe, 
rt is reasonably possible that the equipment‘s estrmated useful lves could change in the near term. 

4. REVOLVING LINES OF CREDIT AGREEMENTS 

In P~nl2001, the Company entered into three revobng lines of credrr agreenients under which the Compmy was provkkl three $3,5cO,030 lines of credit 
by Ban00 Credit0 Inversicmes, Gorp Bmca Nv, and Barque Sudamecis. In December 2001, the Company pad off the agreement wth Corp Banca W. 
As of December 31,2031, the amounts outstanding under the remaining two revolving agreements was $7,000,000 Banco Credit0 lnversiones and 
Banque Sudameris each had an outstanding b a l m  of $3,500,003 b m h g  interest at UBOR plus I ,2% (3,07% at December 31, ZWlj. The Banco 
credit0 lnversica~es agreement matured and was renewed on January 4,2032 and is renewable on a month to month basis until demand payment is made 
by Banco Credit0 lnversiones The Banque Sudameris agreement matures on June 7,2002. The Compmfs revohing agreements do not contain any 
restnctive financial covenants 

‘ 

The revolving lines of credit were obtained by the Company to alleviate the cash flow needs caused by the OAN Chapter 11 case. 

5. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 

The following table summarizes the related party balances and transactions as of December 31 , 2001 and 2000: 

Due from related parties 
Services rendered from certain affiliates 

2001 2000 

$ 1,187,000 $ ~2a,ooo 
Total due from related parties ~ $ 1,187,000 $ 328,000 

-I 

Due to stockholder and related parties, net 
Services provided by certain affiliates 
Entel Internet Agreement 
Entel LCR Agreement 
Entel Satellite Agreement 
Entel Loans 

$ 15,993,000 

1 ,305,ooO 
2,648,000 
7,464,000 

(3,4 76,000) 
$ 7,679,000 

(422, OOO) 
667,000 
299,000 

$ 23,934,000 $ 8,223,000 __-___ Total due to stockholder and related parties, net 



. .  

Americasky Agreement - On March 31, 1993, the Company entered into an agreement with Americasky Corporation ("Americasky") to provide 
for the operation and maintenance of the Company's telecommunication facilities given that Americasky owns the Federal Comrnunications 
Commission license to operate a common carrier radio facility Americasky is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Entel BVI The initial term of the 
agreement is for a period of 10 years with continual self-renewing five-year intervals The agreement calls for the Company to maintain and operate 
its facilities and Arnencasky, in turn, will lease said facilities, in addition to any required office arid storage space. There were no amounts outstanding 
as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 as a result of this agreement 

Entel Internet Agreement - Effective November 1995, the Company entered into an agreement to provide Entel access to the Internet lor an 
initial start-up fee plus a monthly fixed fee. The agreement is effective for a one-year period arid renews automatically for additional and successive 
12-month terms, provided neither party terminates it As of December 31 , 2001 and 2000, amounts due from Entel related to this agreement 
are approximately $3,476,000 and $422,000, respectively, which is netted in due to stockholder and related parties in the accompanying balance 
sheets. 

Entel LCR Agreement - Effective February 1996, the Company entered into another agreement with Entel whereby the Company sells units 
(minutes) along its link with Entel to other camels and vice versa Revenue is generated with the flow from the traffic usage and flow from one 
country to the other. Effective May 1998, the Company uses its own switch to sell units (versus relying on Entel) on a Least Cost Routing ("LCR") 
basis Entel is a major terminating carrier on the LCR System As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, included in due to stockholder and related 
parties is a net payable of approximately $1,305,000 and $667,000, respectively, related to this agreement in the accompanying balance sheets. 

Entel Satellite Agreement - Also included in due to stockholder and related parties in the accompanying balance sheets as of December 31, 
2001 and 2000 is a payable amounting to approximately $2,648,000 and $299,000, respectively, related to an agreement with Entel whereby 
the Company pays a tixed monthly charge for the usage of the telecommunication/satelllte link between the United States and Chile 

Services Rendered/Provided by Certain Affiliates - In the normal course of business, the Company provides telecommunication services to certain 
affiliates. As of December 31 , 2001 and 2000, the Company had receivables from these affiliates amounting to approximately $1 , I  87,000 and 
$328,000, respectively. Addttionally, as of December 31 , 2001 and 2000, the Company had outstanding payables amounting to approximately 
$1 5,993,000 and $7,679,000, respectively, for telecommunicatron services provided to the Company by affiliates 

Entel Loans - In July 2001 , the Company obtained two short-term loans of $7,0OO,O@JZlhd $3,000,000, both bearing an interest rate of 15% 
from Entel. In December 2007, the Company paid off these loans. On December 12,2001, the Company obtained an additional loan for 
$5,500,000 bearing interest of 14.29%. Additionally, on December 28, 2001, Entel transferred $1,600,000 to Amerrcatel" Guatemala on behalf 
of the Company. The interest expense incurred on the loans from Entel was $364,000. The amount outstanding to Entel including interest as 
of December 31, 2001 was $7,464,000 and is included in due to stockholder and related parties in the accompanying 2001 balance sheet. 

6. INCOME TAXES 

The components of the benefit from (provision for) income taxes IS as follows: 

For the Years Ended 
December 31 

200 1 2000 

Current 
Deferred 

$ (504,157) $ (225,800) 
8,642,000 

Total $ 8,137,843 $ (225,800) 
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The following table summarizes the tax effects compnsing the Company’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2GOO: 

200 1 2000 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 8,361,000 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 8,238,000 1,690,000 
Alternative minimum tax credits 372,000 
Other (14,000) (1 20.Qooj 

$ 12,577,000 

173,000 

_ I ~ _ _ _ _ I _ _ _ -  - _______ I-_-_ ____l____l__ll_ _-_I__c------- 

16,957,OOO 14,320,000 Total net deferred tax assets 
~~ ~ ~~~ ~ 

Valuation allowance (8,315,000) (1 4,320,000) 

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes of 
approximately $21,653,000 and $31,521,000, respectively, expiring through 201 9. A portion of the tax loss carryforwards are subject to the 
lrmitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. In July 1996, additional shares of stock of the Company were transferred to Entel Under 
the provisions of Section 382, this transfer resulted in an ownership change due to Entel’s greater-than 50 percent increase in stock ownership 
withtn a three-year period Once an ownership change is deemed to have occurred undet Section 382, a limitation on the annual utilization of 
net operatingloss carryovers IS imposed. As a result of the 1996 ownership change, the utilization of the Company’s remaining pre-July 7 996 
net operating losses totaling approximately $57  1 3,000 IS limited to a maximum of approximately $1,606,000 arlnually through their expiration 
date If another ownership change should occur n the future, the tax-loss carryovers prior- to the change in ownership may be further limited 
under the provision of Section 382 
Future tax benefits, such as net operating loss carryforwards, are required to be recognized to the extent that realization of such benefits is more 
likely than not. A valuation allowance is established for those benefits that do not meet the more likely than not criteria. A valuation allowance 
has been established at December 31, 2001 for the portion of the net deferred tax assets that in management‘s judgment may not be realized 
within the foreseeable future. 

7. STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUIT 

Additional Total 
Common Paid-in Accumulated Stgckholders’ 

Stock Capital Deficit Equity 

Balance, December 31, 1999 $ 550 $ 55,866,166 $ (43,252,407) $ 12,614,309 

Issuance of common stock 69 6,505,768 e, 505,887 

Net income 6,386,056 . 6,386,056 
Balance, December 31, 2000 61 9 62,37 1,934 (36,866,35 1) 25,506,202 
Net income 386.625 386,625 
Balance, December 31,2001 $ 619 $ 62,371,934 $ (36,479,726) $ 25,892,827 

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

. Leases - The Company is obligated under various noncancelable operating and capital leases expiring through the year 201 2 for various 
equipment used in relation to the operations of the Company The following is a schedule of future minimum tease payments under the terms of 
noncancelable operating and capital leases as of December 31, 2001 : 
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Year Ending 
December 31, 

Future Minimum 
Lease Payments 

Operating 
teases 

Capital 
Leases 

2002 $ 298,000 $ 787.000 
2003 222,000 13l,000 

-1 8,000 146,000 2004 
2005 140,ooO 
2006 and thereafter 853,000 

Total minimum lease payments $ 1,659.000 336,000 
~ __ _I ___I 

Less. amount representing interest (5 1,0001 

Total obligation under capital leases . 285,000 
___-- -_- 

Less. current matunties (191,000) 

$ 94,000 __ ___-_ Long-term obligations under capital teases 

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 amounted to approximately $726,000 and $367,000, respectively 

Litigation - The Company commenced an adversary proceeding in the Chapter 11 bankruptcy case of OAN. In the adversary proceedings, 
the Company asserts that certain accounts receivable, and the proceeds thereof, which were collected by OkN after the cornmencement of its 
Chapter 1 1- case, are not property of the Chapter 1 1 estate and belong solely to the Company. The amount owed represents receivables that 
OAN collected on the Company’s behalf pursuant to the parties’ contractual agreement, but which OAN failed to tender. The Company 
contends that, at the time that OAN declared bankruptcy, OAN owed the Company an amount in excess of $37 million. As of December 31, 
2001 , the litigation is ongoing and the Company has reserved $1 4 million of the total receivables balance owed by OAN (see Note 2). The 
Company believes that $1 4 million is a worse case scenario based on current settlement offers from OAN and believes it will successfully 
collect a majority of the outstanding receivable. 
The Company is subject to certain legal proceedings and claims which anse in the normal course of its business In the opinion of Company 
management, there is no pending or threatened litigation which will have a material effect on the Company‘s financial position or results of 
operations. 

9. SAVtNGS PLAN 

On July 1 , 1996, the Company established a savings plan (the “Plan”) under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan allows 
eligrble employees to contribute up to 15 percent of their compensation on a pre-tax basis. The Company matches 100 percent of the first 
$1,000 and 25 percent of the next $4,000 an emptoyee contnbutes to the Plan. The maximum the Company will contribute to the Plan per 
employee is $2,000 per plan year Company contributions are vested incrementally over three years. The charge to operations for the 
Company’s matching contribution was approximately $88,000 and $71,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

There have been no subsequent events that matenally affect the Company’s financial position as of December 31, 2001 and the results of its 
operations for the year then ended. 
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AmericateP', a faci I it ies-based telecommunications company headquartered 
in Miami, was all but unknown to residential long-distance customers three 
years ago. That is when is AmericateP, which had built a solid business 
providing private telecommunications to corporations throughout the 
Western Hemisphere, began to  focus on a nation within a nation: the 34 
million Hispanic3 who live in the United States. 

: 

First, AmericateP introduced 1010-1 23'", its easy to remember long-distance 
dial-around service. Low rates, excellent sound quality, bilingual customer 
service and an innovative marketing campaign turned 1010-1 23'" into an 
almost immediate success. By the end of  1999, its first full year of operations, 
1010-1 23" was generating 23 milIion minutes per month. By the end of 
2000, traffic on this product had grown 60 percent, to  33 million minutes per 
month. 

Today 1010-123'" is the most popular long-distance service among US. 
Hispanics, and AmericateP is among the most consistently recognized 
communications brands in i ts market segment. 

Second, AmericateP leveraged the success of 1010-1 23'" by introducing a 
line of calling cards that offer the low rates and quality o f  its calling-code 
service in a convenient prepaid format. The cards struck a chord with 
Americatel'sa customers, who find them an ideal way of keeping in touch 
with relatives in Latin America. During the second half of 2000, less than a 
year after they were introduced, AmericateIF Prepaid Calling Cards were 
generating an average 25 million monthly minutes of traffic. 

Third, AmericateP took note of the fact that many o f  i t s  customers were still 
not using the Internet-largely because of the language barrier. Building on 
its experience as a provider of high-speed Internet backbone access, 
AmericateP launched 123.comrM last November, an ISP that 95 percent o f  
Hispanic can access with a local call. Linked with a bilingual Internet portal 
that is  customized t o  reflect the interests and needs of  America's unique and 
vibrant communities, 1 23.comTM is the perfect complement to  AmericateIY 
Ion g -dista nce products. 

Today AmericateP is uniquely positioned to meet the communication needs 
of  Hispanics. The company intends to become the market leader in i t s  
segments, and is  excited by the prospects for continued growth. 

Americatel, 
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A Messag-e 
from the Chairman 

Dear Shareholders, 

The year 2000 was a momentous one for AmericateP. 

Propelled by continued growth in our main product 
lines and the successful launch of several new services, 
AmericateP passed $200 million in revenues and 
reached profitability ahead of schedule. During 2000, 
the company consolidated its position as a leading 
provider o f  long-distance telephone services to  the US. 
Hispanic population, and it is now poised to leverage 
that leadership through a n  expanding offer of 
communication products. 

Consolidated revenues increased 44 percent in 2000, to  
$210.9 million. Of  these, $122.6 million came from 
Long Distance services, $59.9 million from Carrier 
Services $14.5 million from Business Services, $8.3 
million from Prepaid Calling Cards and $3.6 million 
from Subscribed Services. AmericateP earned an 
operating income of  $ 6.3 million in 2000, compared to 
an operating loss of $3.1 million in '1999. 

During the year 2000, AmericateP served more than 
two million customers who generated an average 29 
million long-distance minutes per month. The company 
doubled i ts share of  the US. Hispanic long-distance 
market (from five percent to 11 percent) during this 
period, becoming a major provider in a segment it 
entered less than three years before. Studies conducted 
by market research firms tell us that our success is due 
to  credibility, good service and a permanent focus on 
our customers' needs. 

During 2001, AmericateP intends to generate $300 
million in sales, based on continued revenue gains from 
our traditional products and aggressive growth in  
services such as Prepaid Calling Cards and the Internet 

access. ArnericateP will also redouble efforts t o  make 
quality the distinguishing feature of its products and 
services. Each of our divisions has set quality 
improvement targets for the year. From bilingual 
customer support to trouble-free traffic routing, 
AmericateP will set  the standard for value, service 
an d re I i a bi I it y. 

In short, we anticipate another year of accelerated 
revenue growth and expanding market share, with a 
new focus on the fast-moving market for Internet 
services. We can'count on world-class investors, 
seasoned management and the latest technology, but 
as always the key to our success will be the 
dedication, passion and excellence of our employees. 

5 i n ce re I y, 

A 

Mr. Felipe Ureta T 
Chairman of the Board 
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Americatel's@ Advertising 

Innovative advertising continued to  fuel 
Americatel'P growth in 2000. The 
company reached an estimated 14.7 
million US. Hispanics with various 
mass-m ed ia ma r ke ti ng campaigns. 

A significant part of this effort went 
toward reinforcing the dominance of 
our 1010-123'M long distance service. 
AmericateP introduced a new Spanish- 
language slogan for the service, "Cada 
dia somos mas", which underscores the 
growth in the number of people using 
1010-1 23" (currently around 1.5 
million) while also celebrating the 
rising influence of Hispanics. Marketing 
visuals suggest that customers board 
the "1010-123'" Limo," in an 
acknowledgement of the work ethic 
and the financial rewards Hispanics 
aspire to. 

All advertising for the 1010-123'M service 
uses repetition to reinforce the mnemonic 
advantage of the easy-to-remember 1-2- 
3 sequence. The campaign also constantly 
stresses pricing information and the 
convenience of using a calling code. 

In continuing with i t s  efforts t o  reach 
the US. Hispanic market, AmericateP 
offers two more long-distance 
prod u cts : " U n i e n d o Am e r i caTM I' - its 
traditional contracted service that is 
available today throughout the 
continental US., and Prepaid Calling 
Cards. These services target the 
Hispanic segment that resides in the 
United States and use prepaid calling 
cards to  place domestic and 
i n t e r n a ti o n a I phon e ca I Is. Am e r i cat e lrs@ 
goal is to  be perceived differently from 
i ts competitors. Its positioning strategy 
contemplated a product where i t s  
quality and reliability were its most 
i m po r t  a n t attributes. 

AmericateW 123.C0mm, an Internet 
service and portal designed especially 
for the US. Hispanic market , was 
launched during the year 2000. This 
new service connects customers to the 
World Wide Web, providing access, 
rapid connection, information and 
customer service in Spanish and English 
24 hours a day, 7 days a week. 

As was the case with Americatel's@ 
1010-123'" and the AmericateP Prepaid 
Calling Card, the advertising campaign 
for 1 23.comTM i s  being led by Americatel'P 
famous spokesperson, Don Francisco. 
This campaign was filmed in Biscayne 
Bay, Miami, onboard a spectacular 
yacht. Don Francisco, accompanied by 
two female sailors, lets the 
characteristics and benefits of 1 23.comTM 
be known, inviting the Hispanic 
community to  surf the Internet. 

As a complement to i ts main 
advertising campaign, in 2000 
AmericateP also expanded a successful 
strategy of using special occasion 
marketing campaigns. These included 
promotions tied t o  Valentine's Day, 
Mother's Day, Father's Day and other 
traditional holidays, as well as special 
weekend promotions. 

America te I 's@ Promotions 

Americatelm makes a deliberate effort 
to participate with specific Hispanic 
communities during their native 
holidays and on other special dates 
when they gather to celebrate. 



_ ' !  

Mexicans, who form by far the largest 
national Hispanic group in the US., 
take special care in celebrating their 
traditions. The most important 
celebrations are the day of the Mexican 
Flag, of the Virgin of Guadalupe, Cinco 
de Mayo, Independence Day and the 
ceremony of "El Grito". Other Hispanic 
communities celebrate comparable 
dates with elaborate gatherings, 
sometimes numbering in the hundreds 
of thousands of  people, in which music, 
food and various kinds of artistic 
performances fi l l  the day. AmericateP 
and its 1010-123'" service take a very 
visible and active role in these 
celebrations through contests, raffles 
and a variety manners of promotional 
prizes and gifts. 

;: 

As a way of celebrating the role o f  the 
family in our customer's lives, in 2000 
AmericateP introduced a nationwide 
contest, tied to i ts 1010-1 23'" 
campaigns, to  win " l a  Casa de sus 
Suet7os" (Your Dream House). This 

concluded with an award given to a 
woman of  Colombian descent in Los 
Angeles. In 2001, Americatel" plans to 

. tremendously popular promotion 

continue using promotions to 
strengthen i ts relationship with the 
Hispanic community. 

Community Outreach and 
Support 

AmericateP is known for celebrating 
the cultural heritage of Hispanic 
American communities. But i t also 
identifies with the struggles and 
aspirations of families that are building 
a new life in the US. Its goal is t o  be 
known as a company that is close to 
the every-day concerns o f  Hispanics, be 
it work, education, immigration or even 
natural disasters in a home country. 

Throughout the year 2000, AmericateP 
worked with the government of El 
Salvador to help disseminate 
information about the NACARA law, 
which makes it possible for up to  
225,000 Salvadoran immigrants to  
obtain legal US. residence under 
special provisions. 

In a similar effort, AmericateP teamed 
with Mexico's Secretariat of Education 
to help promote a special transcript 

document for the children of  Mexican 
immigrants who spend part of each 
year in the US. 

Although these activities are inherently 
rewarding, it is pleasing to witness their 
impact. During the year 2000 AmericateP 
received several recognition. The 
Central American Chamber o f  
Commerce in the US. selected 
AmericateP to receive its prestigious 
"Excellence Prize" for the year 2000. 



, Wherever you find Hispanics, 
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Long-Dista nce Services 
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I010 - 123'" 

Americatel'sm flagship product, the 
1010-123TM long-distance-calling code, 
continued to grow rapidly in 2000. Also 
known as a "dial-around" or casual 
calling service, 1010-1 23'" gives 
customers the freedom to make long 
distance calls without having to  sign a 
contract with a long-distance provider. 
The service has no usage limitations 
and can be used to place calls 
anywhere in the world. 

Monthly International traffic volume 
from 1010-123'M increased by 68 
percent between January and December 
of 2000. Mexico, El Salvador, 
Guatemala, Cuba and Honduras were 
the most popular call destinations for 
users of the service, while call 
origination points were concentrated in 
Los Angeles, Miami, New York, Chicago, 
San Francisco and Houston. 

Altogether, more than two million 
household customers used the service 
last year. 

AmericateP has perfected the 
educational challenge of  changing the 
way customers choose their telephone 
service through carefully crafted 
advertising and promotional messages. 
Our message of convenience, 
competitive rates, product quality and  
friendly customer service is now widely 
recognized in the U.S. Hispanic 
community, where 1010-123'M has 
some of the highest brand recognition 
ratings in the industry. A growing 
market and intensive competition a l l  
point towards continued growth for 
this segment of the industry. 

their long-distance calls. Customers 
make only one payment for all local 
and long-distance services. 

AmericateP has become one of  the 
leaders in this market segment by 
providing customers with specific rates 
for each route and by constantly 
offering special promotions. 
AmericateP handles billing through 
external providers that have established 
a network o f  billing contracts covering 
more than 1,300 North American LECs. 
Enclosed with their regular monthly 
telephone bill, 1010-723TM customers 
receive a separate page that details 
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Prepaid Calling Cards 

Arnericatel's@ Prepaid Calling Card, a 
new product category launched last 
March, was one of the company's most 
successful initiatives in 2000. By 
December 2000 AmericateP was selling 
more than 607,000 cards each month, 
representing 26 million minutes per 
month and far exceeding the company's 
projections. 

Available in denominations of $5, $10 
and $20, Amer icateP Prepaid Calling 
Cards can be used to  make both 
international and domestic long 
distance calls. The cards are targeted to 
Hispanics residents, who find them a 
convenient complement to AmericateI's@ 
other telephone services. 
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A national distribution network allows 
AtnericateP to sell the cards 
throughout the continental United 
States. Its principal originating markets 
in 2000 were California and Illinois, 
while the primary destinations were 
Mexico and Central America. 

I i  

I: 

In an industry segment where 
customers were looking for a quality 
product, AmericateP was able to 
leverage i ts established reputation and 
customer loyalty. AmericateP was able 
to fi l l  a void for clients who were 
looking for a well-known company, with 
quality customer service and a 
trustworthy corporate identity. 

As with other AmericateP products, the 
company believes quality and reliability 
will win over new customers to  its 
calling cards, paving the way for 
continued growth in 2001. 



Subscribed Services 

AmericateP takes pride in the loyalty of 
its customers. In order to  reward and 
strengthen that loyalty, during 2000 

handle all their long-distance calls and 
making their preferred inter-exchange 
carrier, customers can access low rates 
directly (dialing 1 for domestic calls 
and 011 for international calls). 

AmericateP launched UniendoAmCricaTM, 
a program that encourages users of  its 
1010-123TM dial-around service to 
become full subscribed clients. 

By December 2000, thousands o f  
customers had signed up for 
U niendoAmCrica'" , generating a 
significant number o f  domestic and 
international calls. Nearly half of the 
international traffic produced by these 
customers was destined for Mexico. 
Cuba, El Salvador, and other Central 
American countries were also 
significant destinations (see graph). 

AmericateP now subscribes lines 
through the Equal Access services with 
a coverage of over 95% of the Hispanic 
market. 

UniendoAmPrica'" channels customer 
satisfaction with its 1010-1 23'" service 
into a more permanent commitment to  
its services. By letting AmericateP 

As with its calling code service, local 
telephone companies bill Americatel's@ 
subscribed long-distance service 
charges directly to the customer. 

During 2001 , AmericateP plans to 
accelerate the acquisition of subscribed 
clients by: 

introducing a loyalty program that 
promotes consumption and brand 
recognition ; 

continuing to offer excellent rates to 
Latin America. 
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Carrier Services 

Carrier Services, a wholesale reseller of 
in ternationa I telephone mi nu tes for 
other carriers, grew rapidly in 2000. 
Formed in 1998 to leverage the 
infrastructure of Americatel's@ regional 
partners, ENTEL Chile and AmericateP 
El Salvador, S.A. de C.V. Carrier Services 
quickly found a niche as buyer and 
seller o f  wholesale minutes to  
customers around the world. These 
customers are attracted to the 
possibility of using a single access point 
to terminate traffic in the Americas or 
elsewhere with an optimum AmericateP 
Fast Routing SystemTM. In 2000, Carrier 
Services added AmericateP Guatemala, 
S.A. and Orbitel Peru, S.A. to its 
partnership, further expanding the 
access point options it can offer. During 
2000, ArnericateP moved over 76% of al l  
the minutes for the Entel Chile group. 

The number of companies interested in 
doing business with AmericateP as 

traffic buyerlsellers increased steadily 
in 2000, reaching the 100 more 
im porta n t telecom mu n ica tions 
companies and moving nearly 630 
million minutes. 

Carrier Services' sales using its 
AmericateP Fast Routing SystemTM 
analyze each cI ient's cost-q ual i ty 
request and recommend an optimum 
route over Americatel'sm fiber optic an( 
satellite-based network. Then they 
tailor a business plan for each client 
that includes interconnections, 
procedures for international accounts, 
payment schedules, accords and 
contracts. 

The wholesale business also allows 
AmericateP to access a wider network 



and reach hundreds of destinations that 
couldn't be reached otherwise, 
providing our 1010-1 23TM and Prepaid 
Cards with the least costly routes for 
terminating traffic. This subsequently 
makes it possible for AmericateP to 
reduce i ts rates to most destinations. 
Today the 1010-1 23'" service represents 
over 50 percent of the total traffic 
handled by AmericateP. During 2000, 
Carrier Services handled over 630 
million minutes, positioning the 
company as one of the leaders in Latin 
America and within the top ten Facility 
Based Carriers of the United States. 



Find your own horizon ... 
embark on a voyage 

to a better future. 
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123.COM'" 
I nte r ne t Access 

started on the Internet-through 
123.COM'". 

During the year 2000, AmericateP 
entered a new stage in i ts plan for 
becoming a provider of comprehensive 
communications solutions. Our market 
research indicated that many U.S. 
Hispanic consumers-including those 
who are heavy users of long-distance 
services-are still not using the Internet. 
The language barrier is  perhaps the 
single biggest reason. People who are 
unfamiliar with computers and the 
Internet are understandably hesitant to  
go online if they are not sure they'll 
receive f r i end I y bi I i ng u a I custo me r 
support. Even those who own a 
computer are discouraged by the 
scarcity of lSPs that are tailored 
specifically t o  Hispanics. 

Now, AmericateP is leveraging the 
trust of millions of Hispanic who 
associate the numbers "1 23" with easy, 
reliable and low cost long-distance 
service. These customers can experience 
the same kind of service when they get 

launched in November 2000, 
1 23.COMTM offers everything today's 
demanding Internet users want from an 
ISP. For $19.95 per month, 123.COMTM 
provides fast  and unlimited Internet 
access, multiple e-mail addresses, free 
web page hosting, customizable 
calendars and much more. All o f  this is 
available through a local call in cities 
that cover more than 95 percent of the 
continental US. Hispanic population. In 
addition, 123.COM'"does not require a 
long-term subscription contract. 

Unlike other ISPs, 1 23.COMrM is tailored 
specifically to the communication 
needs of Hispanic consumers. To 
reinforce the link with Americatel'sB 
other products, customers get special 
promotional offers. They also get a free 
installation CD with instructions, and 
bilingual, toll-free technical support is 
available 24 hours a day, seven days a 
week. 

In short, 723.COMTM translate into an 
excellent Internet access from a name 
Hispanic consumers know and trust. 
But 123.COMTM is much more than an ISP. 
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1 23.COMT"-Web Portal 

Throughout the year 2000, AmericateP 
researched, developed and tested a full- 
sewice World Wide Web 
communications portal that wil l greet 
1 23.COMTM users when they log on. 
Released simultaneously with the ISP 
service, the 123.COMTM portal offers 
Arnericatel's@ customers a one-stop- 
shop for al l  their communications needs. . 

1 23.COMTM includes traditional Internet 
'services such as e-mail, chat, 
directories, etc. Also a t  1 23.COMTM, 
users can take online Internet lessons in 
Spanish or English. Automated 
translation, Web searches, stock quotes 
and news are also available-all in a 
clear, uncluttered format. 

123.COMTM can also be personalized, 
reflecting the cultural and geographic 
diversity of Hispanic customers. 
123.COMTM can be easily customized to  
suit a user's preferred language, country 
and even city o f  choice, 1 23.COMTM 
automatically feature news and 
weather from the user's designated 
country and city. 

Soon, it will also offer innovative Voice 
over Internet Protocol (VOIP) long- 
distance calling and video 
teteconferencing. The focus on the 
Hispanic community is the key element 
to differentiate the company, and the 
segmentation of this market will enable 
AmericateP to  become a 
communication portal for the Americas. 
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Bussines Services 

AmericateP established its reputation as 
a leader in business line communication 
services in Latin America and the 
Caribbean, with operations in over 40 
countries coordinated from our 
i n t ern a t i o na I t e  I e co m m u n ica t io ns 
facilities in  Miami, Florida. Our leading- 
edge technology and physical or virtual 
presence in these countries make 
AmericateP the best choice for both 
regional IP service providers and 
multinational companies with offices or 
facilities in the hemisphere. 
AmericateIV Business Services Division 
is the company's most mature and 
consolidated area, composed of a 
seasoned staf f  of engineers and 
specialists with in-depth knowledge 
and expertise in the development and 
implementation o f  state-of-the-art 
telecommunications services. 

Service Level Agreements 

Service Level Agreements (SLAs), are 
increasingly popular among corporate 
telecommunications customers because 
they offer a guaranteed level of 
performance. If that level is not met, 
the customer does not pay for the 
service. 

Am erica t e  18 offers corn p re he nsive and 
realistic SlAs to all i t s  corporate 
customers. All of i ts SLAs guarantee up 
to  99.5 percent of uptime service, end- 
to-end, which is equivalent to  3.5 hours 
per month downtime, other than 
scheduled maintenance. This includes 
nom-AmericateP operated local loops. 
On its Internet access contracts, it 
guarantees 100 percent of the specified 
bandwidth, 100 percent o f  the time. 
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international Private Line 
Service 

AmericateP offers customers with 
heavy telecommunications volume to 
Latin America via the convenience and 
reliability of dedicated private lines. 
Through i ts  regional network, ' 
AmericateP installs and services high 
capacity private digital lines capable of 
transmitting voice, data or video either 
over satellite or fiber optic cable 
systems within the industry's highest 
standard, I NTELSAT In terna t iona I 
Business Service (IBS) parameters. 
Unlike open, direct-dial systems that 
route calls through a maze of available 
international switches and carriers, 
AmericateYsm dedicated private lines 
connect two or more points end-to- 
end, securely, immediately and 
con t i n uousl y. T h is vi r t  u a I I y el i mi nates 
the risk of delays and busy signals 
during peak hours. 

Our standard private line service 
consists of  clear channel digital lines at 



speeds ranging from fractional T1 or E1 
to DS3 or even N x STM-1 levels. 
Americatel" takes full administration 
and management responsibility for the 
end-to-end service, making the process 
of installing international lines in the 
region transparent to customers. Our 
flexibility and responsiveness to 
customer's needs allows us to provide 
non-standard services as well, in order 
to suit a variety of technical and 
corporate customer requirements. 

Wholesale Internet 

In 2000, AmericateP established its 
position as a preferred provider of 
Internet backbone access to Internet 

Service Providers (ISPs) in Latin America 
and the Caribbean. 

-The backbone node has redundant 
access to  the US Internet via multiple 
Providers at 053 or higher. The 
redundancy of the Internet access is 
both physical and logical. The access 
speed ranges from fractional T1 or E1 

to D53 levels either in duplex 
symmetric, duplex asymmetric, or 
simplex fashion, and to N x STM-1 
levels in duplex symmetric fashion. 

Very Small Aperture Terminal 

The outstanding quality and reliability 
of a private satellite network to  Latin 
America is within the reach of even 
moderate volume telecommunications 
users today. Through i ts regional 
network, AmericateP installs and 
maintains Very Small Aperture 
Terminal (VSAT) satellite antennas a t  
remote locations. VSATs are capable of 
transmitting the data in virtually any 
computer protocol (digital voice, data, 
fax or video) directly through the 
company's international gateway to  a 
customer's network server. ~ 

AmericateI's@ network of 
telecommunications companies 
throughout Latin America and the 
Caribbean allows us to assure the 
highest transmission quality and level 
of service. The companies provide 

expert turnkey, in-country installation 
of VSAT antennas, achieving timely and 
consistent service and troubleshooting 
levels. VSATs serve the varying data 
needs of  credit card companies, hotel 
and airline reservation systems, banks, 
multinational regional offices or other 
users. During peak periods, capacity is 
automatically assigned to the users 
with the most immediate needs. 
ArnericateP private satellite networks 
offer a n  economical alternative for 
needs ranging from five connection 
points to complex networks involving 
multiple locations. 
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Infrastructure and Facilities 

AmericateP operates a fully-equipped 
i n t e  r n a t iona I tel ecom m u n ica t ions 
facility in Miami, an International 
Gateway switching facility in  New York 
City and telecommunications faci I i ties 
in selected countries in Latin America. 
The Miami Teleport facility provides a 
state-of-the-art telecommunications 
infrastructure to support a wide variety 
of Americatet's@ services. The Miami 
facility features a base satellite 
telecommunications infrastructure 
comprised of one Standard-A antenna 
and two Standard-E antennas. All of 
these are equipped with fully redundant 
el ect ron i c cam po n ents i ncl ud i ng , but 
not limited to, IES/IDR/TCM-IDR 
compatible satellite modems, High 
Power Amplifiers (HPAJ and Low Noise 
Amplifiers (LNA). The equipment is  
diligently configured and maintained 
7x24 to  guarantee the highest level of 
re1 ia bi I ity. 

In addition to  its base satellite 

tel ecom m u nica ti ons ca pa bi I it ies, 
Americatel'sm Miami teleport is 
interconnected to the submarine fiber 
optic cable systems located o f f  Florida's 
East Coast. State-of-the-art 
T I  / E l  IDS310C310C48 multiplexers, 
VSAT hubs, carrier class IP router 
platforms and Frame Relay switches are 
also housed at Americatel's Miami 
Teleport facility. A high-capacity 
Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) and 
an electrical power generator 
guarantee the continuous operation of 
mission-critical te l  ecommun ica tions 
equipment a t  the Miami teleport, 
should a power outage affect the 
facility, Together, these resources make 
it possible for AmericateP to  provide 
reliable and fully integrated 
teleco rn mu nica ti ons se nrices . 

throughout the region. 

Americatel's@ New York facility is 
located at 60 Hudson St., New York 
City, New York. This site is a well- 
established location shared by many 
carriers, resulting in reduced 

interconnection costs. At present, 
Americatek@ New York switch is 
interconnected with 40 
national and international carriers. 
Multiple high-speed interconnections 
link our New York and Miami facilities. 

A redundant domestic fiber optic ring 
network provides high capacity links 
between New York, Americatel's@ 
International telecommunication 
facilities in Miami and the landing 
points of submarine cables a t  West 
Palm Beach and OJUS, Florida. This 
robust network has given AmericateP a 
strong hemispheric presence and has 
made it one of the major providers o f  
Internet backbone access for many 
countries in  Latin America. 

Finalty, AmericateP has implemented a 
total access ISP platform located a t  
New York that allows local dial-up 
access connections for customers 
located on the US. mainland. 



Fiber Optic Cables 

Atlantic Ocean System 
AmericateP uses the fiber cables of i t s  
parent company, ENTEL Chile, which are 
channeled through the Americas 
l/Columbus II, Unisur and Trasandino 
cables. The Columbus II cable also 
provides a unique connection between 
the US. and Italy, ensuring high quality 
connections to the rest of Europe, as 
well as Africa and the Middle East. 

Pacific Ocean System 
The Pan American fiber optic submarine 
cable connects AmericateP with ENTEL 
Chile and enables additional 
connections to  Panama and South 
American countries, including Peru, 
Ecuador, Bolivia, Colombia and 
Venezuela. 

Other cable systems 
AmericateP and ENTEL@ Chile also have 
investments in fiber optic cables that 
reach across the North Pacific Ocean, 

notably TPC4, which links Hawaii 5, the 
Caribbean Rim, the Pacific Rim East and 
Tasman 2 cables in the South Pacific. 
This linkage allows AmericateP t o  
interconnect with the Asian mainland, 
the Pacific region, and the Caribbean, in  
addition t o  providing a direct 
connection to Japan, Hong Kong and 
Australia. 

A connection to  the Americas II and 
Maya Cable enables AmericateI's@ 
Carrier Services to  provide full cable 
connection within the Central American 
region, including Nicaragua, Honduras 
and Guatemala. 

Satellite 

satel l i te organization, was formerly the 
only link t o  INTELSAT's global satellite 
network. 

With this new service, AmericateP not 
only provides backup to its facilities 
operations, but also interconnects 
directly with 70 countries around the 
world. 

AmericateP connects with over 230 
cou n t ri es through correspondent 
agreements, which are made possible 
by different satellites. In addition to  
high quality connectivity to  many 
destinations, satellites provide an 
excellent alternative for restoration of 
fiber optic links. 

On December 16th, 1999, AmericateP 
became one of the first carriers in the 
United States to sign a contract with 
INTELSAT for Level 3 Direct Access to 
international satellite services-an 
option made available in the United 
States on December 6, 1999. Comsat, 
the US. government-sanctioned 

This direct access to  INTELSAT will 
provide AmericateP with an even 
stronger presence in the region and 
facilitate more competitive service 
options for i ts clients. 



Sales 

In 2000, AmericateP began expanding 
its specialized sales s ta f f  to  
com p le m en t existi ng mass- m ed i a 
marketing efforts. In addition to  
strength en i n g Am er icate 1'9 
relationships with existing private and 
corporate clients, this team laid the 
groundwork for the successful launch 
of new products such as Prepaid Calling 
Cards. 

Through its distributors, Americatel's@ 
Prepaid Calling Cards are now sold a t  
100,000 purchasing points throughout 
the country, including gas stations and 
convenience stores. In the Los Angeles 
area, AmericateP has also brokered a 
co-branding agreement whereby the 
Prepaid Calling Cards are displayed in 
local area supermarkets. AtnericateP is 
exploring a variety of similar 
promotional arrangements to  promote 
i ts  new ISP and Internet products. 

Americatel'sa has set ambitious goals 
for 2001. The company intends to 
increase its revenues significantly for 
all its products, and try to  reach all and 
every one of the Hispanic consumers. 
The sales staf f  will also play a 
supporting role in marketing efforts 
promoting the 123.COMlM Web portal 
and boost i ts fiber-based data network 
sales. 

Customer Service 

Excellent customer service has been a 
distinguishing feature of AmericateP 
products from the very beginning. 
During 2000, the company redoubled 
its efforts to  anticipate and respond to 
the service needs of its customers 
through toll-free bilingual help lines. 
Customer support for its flagship 
1010-1 231M product improved 
extensively with four times as many 
agents, with extensive classroom and 
on-the-job training programs. 
After training, each associate's 

performance is monitored regularly 
through on-site-su pervision. 

AmericateP also developed new 
customer service units for its new line 
of products. Despite the rapid customer 
growth for them, the company was able 
t o  stay ahead of customer service 
demands through a carefully executed 
trainnig, monitoring and service 
method. The companies bilingual 
Customer Service agents provide shared 
customer care 24 hours 7 days a week 
for all their products and services. 

In 2001 , AmericateP is planning to 
implement a Customer Relationship 
Management system that will enable 
the company t o  achieve even greater 
quality and efficiency in i t 5  support 
functions. The system will include 
customer profiling features that will 
reveal more detailed information about 
customer calling habits and permit the 
company to more effectively target 
new customers. 



Billing and Collections Revenue Protection Human Resources 

Billing and collections functions at 
AmericateP are managed through 
external providers that have established 
a network o f  billing and collections 
contracts covering more than 1,300 
North American local telephone 
companies {LECs). The Billing and 
Collections department a t  AmericateP 
is responsible for monitoring, 
controlling and analyzing information 
pertaining to all the billing provider's 
activities. This includes information on 
remittances, service charges, u n bil la ble 
accounts, bad debts and account 
adjustments. The department i s  also 
responsible for a i l  Exchange Message 
interface (EMI) traffic control, initiating 
blocking procedures for unbillables and 
rejected EMls, and conducting direct 
billing as required. 

Revenue Protection monitors and 
analyzes traffic in search of possible 
fraudulent calls. AmericateP has on- 
line call detail report (CDR) and alert 
systems that continuously monitor 
customer calling patterns. The duration, 
frequency and timing o f  calls are used 
to trigger alerts. 

AmericateP 24/7 on-line monitoring 
system for its 1010-123'" traffic, has 
allowed us to greatly reduce blocking 
response time when fraudulent calls are 
detected. Analysis tools are also used to  
study customer patterns by caller origin 
and call destination. Use of these 
systems and procedures has resulted in 
a substantial monthly savings. 
AmericateP has reduced its exposure to 
fraudulent activity significantly. 

The growth of our business, from our 
traditional services and also our new 
product lines, such as : 
Prepaid Calling Cards and lSP/Portal 
Services created a great demand for 
qualified individuals. 

During fiscal year 2000, Human 
Resources met the challenge and 
increased Americatel's workforce by 28 
percent, to  a total of around 128 
employees. 

AmericateP i s  en equal opportunity 
employer, and is in full compliance with 
i ts Affirmative Action Plan. 
The company provides a comprehensive 
benefit package to i t 5  employees. 
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Future Plans 

A census in the United States rarely 
reveals big surprises, but the one 
completed in the year 2000 was an 
exception. As announced in newspaper 
headlines across the country, the 
census showed that Hispanics now 
equal African Americans in  population. 
Although the convergence in these 
numbers was predicted years ago, the 
census revealed that it has happened 
faster than anticipated-thanks to a 58 
percent jump in the US. Hispanic 
population since 1990. 

For America's diverse Hispanic citizens, 
now 35 million strong, this was a very 
special milestone. After decades on the 
sidelines of American life, Hispanics are 
now taking the center stage-not 
merely because of their rising numbers, 
but because of their increasingly visible 
achievements in business, education, 



politics and entertainment. As a columnist 
in Miami observed, the fact that Hispanics 
will soon be the largest "minority" 
group in America marks "a historic shift 
whose broad implications are already 
being debated across the country." 

For AmericateP, the census was a 
resounding confirmation that we are 
the right company in  the right place 
and at the right time. AmericateP was 
the first U.S.-based telecommunications 
firm to build its business model entirely 
around Hispanic customers. For us it 
has always been apparent that these 
communities-with the strong sense of 
duty, family and cultural tradition-would 
thrive in the entrepreneurial 
atmosphere of the United States. 

That is why Americatela has built a 
family of linked communications 
products that are carefully tailored t o  

the needs, tastes and preferences of 
Hispanic customers. Having consolidated 
our position as the leading calling-code 
for Hispanic customers, last year we 
launched a popular line of prepaid 
calling cards and an Internet access 
service, 123.COM". At  the same time, a 
growing percentage o f  our 1010-1 23IM 
"casual calling" customers are deciding 
to make AmericateP their permanent, 
subscribed long-distance service. 

Now, AmericateP is ready to  become a 
one-stop-shop for a l l  our customers' 
communications needs. Our Internet 
portal makes it easier than ever to learn 
about Americatel'sB long-distance 
products and rates, and it also offers a 
new range of options for communicating 
online. Next, we are preparing to offer 
a new generation of products, such as 
VOIP, that wil l further blur the lines 
that traditionally divided different 

kinds of communications. 
As always, the emphasis will be on 
friend I y, b i I in g u a I custom e r service, 
market-leading prices and the unique 
cultural preferences of individual 
Hispanic national groups. Americatela, 
counts on becoming the source Hispanics 
rely on to communicate with each other, 
which will increase our leadership 
position among Hispanic consumers. 

We're glad to  hear that America's 
Hispanic communities are forecast to 
continue growing. We plan to grow 
with them, helping Hispanic strengthen 
their communities through the 
empowerment offered by these new 
technologies. 

-Mr. Konrh Burchardt 
President / Director 
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Management Discussion 
and Analysis 



In the year 2000, less than three years 
after launching Long Distance Services 
in the US., AmericateP became 
profitable. Despite expenditures 
including $4.4 million required to 
launch our new ISP and Internet Portal 
products, the company generated after- 
t a x  profits of $6.4 million last year, this 
is an increment of $ 9.1 million 
compared to 1999 results. 

Reve n u es 

Am erica t e I Is@ Ca r r i e r Services (PSTN) 
revenues also grew significantly in 
2000, rising 30 percent to $59.9 million 
on sales of 266 million minutes. The 
company's participation in Worldnet 
Corporate remained a key factor in this 
segment, enabling it to function as one 
of  the three nodes in Grupo ENTECs 
corporate traffic network and to  
terminate a growing volume of third- 
party traffic. 

Prepaid Calling Cards, launched early 
last year, generated $8.3 mi!lion in 
revenues and were accounting for 27 
million long-distance minutes per 
month by December. By year-end 
AmericateP had also signed up 3,6,000 
customers for our Subscribed tong- 
disance service, which was introduced 
in late 1999. Revenues for this product 
reached $3.6 million last year, based on 
a total of 13 million minutes of traffic. 

Americatel's@ revenues increased 44 
percent in 2000, to  $210.9 million. The 
company's 1010-1 23TM long-distance 
service remained its largest and 
fastest-growing source of revenue, 
generating $122.6 million or 46 percent 
more than in 1999. International long- 
distance revenues were especially 
strong, accouting for $105.9 million of 
the 1010-123 product total (a 50 
percent increase from the previous 
year) . Inter na t i on a I Ion g -d ista nce 
minutes increased 77 percent in 2000, 
to 289 million. 

Business Services generated $14.5 
million for AmericateP in 2000, up 8 
percent from 1999, primarily on the 
basis of data transportation and 
communication services provided to 
Internet Service Providers (ISPs) in Latin 
America. AmerticateP is now in an 
excellent position t o  continue profiting 
from the explosive growth of Internet 
service forecast for Latin American and 
Caribbean countries in the years ahead. 

Finally, we are pleased to report that 
two of our newest products also 
showed impressive growth in 2000. Our 



Cost o f  Sales 

Americatel's@ direct cost of sales grew 
42 percent in 2000, to $157.4 million, 
driven primarily by 1010-123" and 
PSTN services. 

Administrative and Sales 
Expenses 

o f  $45.7 million, a 69 percent increase 
from the previous year. 

EBlTDA 

Americatel'sB EBlTDA reached $9.1 
millon in 2000, a $9.9 millons increase 
over the previous year. 

The company's administrative and sales 
costs amounted to  $47.2 millones last 
year, a 22 percent increase over 1999. 
Product development and advertising 
costs for Americatek@ new ISP and 
Internet portal products accounted for 
a $4.4 million o f  the total. 

Operational Income 

As a result o f  the improvements 
described above, AmericateP reported a 
$6.3 million operating profit in 2000, 
equivalent to a $9.4 million gain on the 
previous year. These results were led by 
our flagship '1010-1 23'" long-distance 
service, which generated a gross margin 
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Financial Statements 



De I o it t e &Tou c h e LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Suite 400 
200 South Biscayne Boulevard 
Miami, Florida 33131 -2310 

Tel (305) 372-3100 
Fax: (305) 372-31 60 
www.us deloitte com 

Delsitte 
&Touche 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of  Directors of 
Am erica t e  I Corporation : 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of AmericateP Corporation (the "Company"), a majority-owned 
subsidiary of Entel International B.V.I. Corporation, as o f  December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the retated statements of 
operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is  to  express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of  America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in al l  material respects, the financial position of the Company 
a t  December 31,2000 and 1999, and the results o f  i ts operations and i ts  cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of  America. 

February 2, 2001 

Deloit'e- 
Touche 
To h matsu 



Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2000 and 1999 

CURRENT ASSETS:  
Cash and cash equivalents $6,07 5,70 5 $2,745.398 

Receivables: 
Trade, n e t  o f  a l lowance fo r  d o u b t f u l  accounts o f  
$4,225,772 i n  2000 and $1,528,949 i n  1999 
Other 

47,655,729 31,038,378 
35,423 7,255 

Tota l  receivables,  n e t  47,691,l 5 2  31,045,633 

Prepaid expenses and o t h e r  c u r r e n t  assets 
Due f r o m  related part ies 

2,334,845 
327,501 

1,206,448 
286,597 

Tot a f cu r re n t assets 

P R O P E R T Y  A N D  EQUIPMENT, n e t  

O T H E R  ASSETS, n e t  

56,429,203 3 5,2 84,076 

17,137,086 11,046,624 

3,772,992 2,611,810 

TOTAL $77,339,281 $48,942,510 

CU R R E NT LI A B I LIT1 ES: 
Accounts payabte and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenues 
Current matur i t ies  o f  o b l i g a t i o n s  under cap i ta l  leases 
Due t o  stockholders and re la ted  part ies, n e t  

$ 3 9 , 3 8 8 , 3 4 3  $23,533,002 
3,685,692 - 

8,222,721 12,758,591 
- 31 4,986 

To t a  I c u  r r e  n t I i a b i  I i t i e s 51,611,742 36,291,593 

OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES 197,254 

OTHER LONG-TERM L l  A B  I LIT1 E S  24,083 36,608 

COMMITMENTS AND C O N T I N G E N C I E S  (Note 5) 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
Common stock, $.01 par value, 150,000 shares  au 
61,854 and 54,981 shares issued and ou ts tand ing  
Add i t iona l  pa id - in  cap i ta l  
Accumulated d e f i c i t  

hor ized; 
respect ively 61 9 

62,371,934 
(36,866,3 5 1 ) 

550 
55,866,166 
(43,2 52,407) 

T o t a l  s tockho lders '  equi ty  25,506,202 12,614,309 

TOTAL $77,339,281 $48,942,510 

S e e  accompanying notes t o  f i n a n c i a l  statements. 
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Statements o f  Operations 
Years Ended December 31 2000 and 1999 

REVENUES 

2000 

$210,905,273 

1999 

$146,426,107 

Cost o f  revenue 
110,792,208 
Sel l ing,  general and admin is t ra t i ve  expenses 

157,363,271 
47,208,130 

110,792,208 
38,711,063 

~~~~~~~~~~ ~~ ~~~~~ 

INCOME ( tOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 6,333,872 (3,077,164) 

In te res t  income 
Other (expense) income 

241,640 353,316 

( 7  5 ,332 )  89,866 
O t h e r  income, n e t  

277 ,984  331,506 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE PROVISION FOR 
CURRENT tNCOME TAXES 6,611,856 (2,745,658) 

PROVISION FOR CURRENT INCOME T A X E S  225,800 - 

NET INCOME (LOSS)  $6,386,056 $ (2 ,745,65  8)  

S e e  accompanying notes t o  f inanc ia l  statements.  

Statements o f  Stock ho I ders' Eq u i t y  
Years Ended December 31 2000 and 1999 

~~~ ~~ 

Common Stock A d d i t i o n a l  Total 
Number o f  P a r  Paid- in Accumulated Stockholders '  

Shares  Value Cap i ta l  D e f i c i t  Equi ty 

BALANCE, 
DECEMBER 31, 1998 

Net loss 

54,981 $550 $55,866,166 $(40,506,749)  $1  5,359,967 

(2,745,6 58)  (2,745,658) 

BALANCE, 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 54,981 5 50 55,866,166 (43 , 2 52,407 1 12,614,309 

Issuance of  common stock 6,873 69 6,505,768 6,505,837 

Net income 6,386,056 6.3 86,O 56 

BALANCE,  
DECEMBER 31, 2000 61,854 $ 6 1  9 $62,371,934 $(36,866,351)  $25,506,202 

See accompanying notes t o  f inanc ia l  statements.  
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Statements o f  Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

N e t  income (loss) 
Ad jus tment  t o  reconc i le  n e t  loss t o  n e t  cash used 
in o p e r a t i n g  ac t iv i t ies :  

Deprec ia t ion  and a m o r t i z a t i o n  
Prov is ion f o r  d o u b t f u l  accounts  
Net  changes i n  o p e r a t i n g  assets and l iab i l i t ies :  

Increase i n  receivables 
Increase i n  prepaid expenses 
Increase i n  accounts  payable and accrued expenses 
Increase i n  de fer red  revenues 
(Decrease) increase i n  due t o  s tockholders 

Increase (decrease) i n  o t h e r  l o n g - t e r m  l i a b i l i t i e s  
and re la ted  par t ies,  n e t  

2,719,781 
6,912,539 

(23 ,558 ,058)  
( 1  , I  28,397) 
16 , l  70,327 
3,685,692 

( 4 , 5  7 6,7 74) 
184 ,729  

_ _  

$(2,745,658) 

2,227,802 
4,7 7 5,O 8 3  

(23,333,92 5) 
(1,033,819) 
8,342,410 

7,622,399 
137,574) 

Net cash prov ided b y  (used i n )  opera t ing  a c t i v i t i e s  6,795,895 (4,181,282) 

Purchases o f  p roper ty  and equ ipment  and o t h e r  a s s e t s  
Co l lec t ion  o f  n o t e  receivable 

(9,971,425) 
- 

(2 ,3  05,9 84)  
90,000 

N e t  cash used i n  inves t ing  a c t i v i t i e s  (9 ,971 ,425)  (2,215,984) 

Proceeds f rom issuance o f  common stock 6,505,837 - 
~~ ~ 

N e t  increase (decrease) i n  cash a n d  cash equ iva len ts  3,330,307 (6,39 7,266) 

9,142,664 C A S H  A N D  C A S H  E Q U I V A L E N T S ,  BEGINNING O F  Y E A R  2 , 7 4 5 , 3 9 8  

C A S H  AND C A S H  EQUIVALENTS, END O F ' Y E A R  $6,07  5,705 $2,745,398 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE 
O F  CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 
Cash pa id  f o r  income taxes - $225,800 

SU P P L E  M ENTAL D I SCLOSU R E 0 F N 0 N CAS ti 
INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVIT IES:  
Telecommunica t ion  equ ipment  acqui red t h r o u g h  c a p i t a l  leases $51 2,240 - 

See accompany ing  n o t e s  t o  f i n a n c i a l  s ta tements.  



Statements o f  Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31 I 2000 and 1999 

N e t  income (loss) 
Ad jus tment  t o  reconci le  n e t  loss t o  n e t  cash used 
i n  opera t ing  ac t iv i t ies :  

Deprec ia t ion  and a m o r t i z a t i o n  
Prov is ion f o r  d o u b t f u l  accounts  
Net changes i n  o p e r a t i n g  assets and l iab i l i t ies :  

Increase in receivables 
Increase in prepa id  expenses 
Increase i n  accounts  payable and accrued expenses 
Increase i n  de fer red  revenues 
(Decrease) increase i n  due t o  s tockholders 

Increase (decrease) i n  o t h e r  l o n g - t e r m  l i a b i l i t i e s  
and re la ted  par t ies,  n e t  

$ 6 , 3 8 6 , 0 5 6  

2,719,781 
6 ,912 ,539  

( 2 3 , 5 5 8 , 0 5 8 )  
f 1 , 1 2 8 , 3 9 7 )  
16 ,770 ,327 
3 , 6 8  5,692 

( 4 , 5 7 6 , 7  74)  
184 ,729  

$[2 ,745 ,658)  

2 ,227.802 
4 ,775 ,083  

( 2  3 , 3  3 3,9 2 5) 
(1 ,031 ,819)  
8 ,342 ,410  

7,622,399 
( 3  7,574)  

Net  cash prov ided by  (used in) opera t ing  a c t i v i t i e s  6 , 7 9 5 , 8 9 5  (4 ,181 ,282)  

Purchases o f  p r o p e r t y  and equ ipment  and o t h e r  assets (9 ,971 ,425)  (2 ,305,984)  
Co l lec t ion  o f  n o t e  receivable I 90,000 

N e t  cash used i n  i n v e s t i n g  ac t iv i t ies  (9 ,971 ,425)  (2 ,215 ,984)  

Proceeds f r o m  issuance o f  c o m m o n  stock 6 , 5 0 5 , 8 3 7  - 
N e t  increase (decrease) i n  cash and cash equ iva len ts  

C A S H  AND C A S H  EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

~~ 

3 , 3  30,307 

2 ,745,398 

( 6 , 3  9 7,2  66)  

9 ,142 ,664  

C A S H  AND C A S H  EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 6 , 0 7  5 ,705  $2 ,745 ,398 

I. 

6. 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE 
O F  C A S H  FLOW INFORMATION: 
Cash pa id  f o r  income taxes $ 2 2 5 , 8 0 0  - 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE O F  N O N C A S H  
INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Telecom m u n ica ti on  eq u i  pmen t a cq u i red t h r o u g h  cap i ta  1 I eases $51 2 ,240  - 

S e e  accompany ing  no tes  t o  f i n a n c i a l  s ta tements.  
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P r o p e r t y  a n d  E q u i p m e n t  - Proper ty  and equ ipment  are s ta ted  a t  cost .  Deprec ia t ton  o n  p r o p e r t y  a n d  equ ipment  i s  
c o m p u t e d  under  t h e  s t r a i g h t - l i n e  method over t h e  es t imated  usefu l  f ives o f  t h e  assets 
renewals  and b e t t e r m e n t s  are capi ta l ized.  Repairs and main tenance expend i tu res  are charyed t o  income a s  incur red .  

Expendi tures f o r  ma jor  

O t h e r  Assets - Other  a s s e t s  cons is t  p r i n c i p a l l y  o f  licenses. The cos t  o f  l icenses i s  a m o r t i z e d  s t ra ight - lbne over the 
t e r m  o f  t h e  respect ive l icense agreement .  

Long-L ived Assets - Long- l i ved  assets are rev iewed o n  an  o n g o i n g  basis f o r  i m p a i r m e n t  based o n  compar ison o f  
c a r r y i n g  va lue t o  t h e  re la ted  und iscounted  f u t u r e  cash f lows.  I f  an i m p a i r m e n t  i s  i d e n t i f i e d ,  t h e  assets car ry ing  
a m o u n t  i s  ad justed t o  f a i r  va lue.  No such ad jus tments  were recorded f o r  t h e  years  ended December 31, 2000 and 
1999.  

I n c o m e  T a x e s  - Income taxes are accounted f o r  under  t h e  asset and l i a b i l i t y  method.  Deferred t a x  assets and 
l i a b i l i t i e s  are recognized f o r  t h e  f u t u r e  tax  consequences a t t r i b u t a b l e  t o  d i f fe rences  be tween t h e  f i n a n c i a l  s ta tement  
c a r r y i n g  amounts  o f  e x i s t i n g  assets and l i a b i l i t i e s  and t h e i r  respect ive t a x  bases and a t t r i b u t a b l e  t o  opera t ing  loss 
and tax  c r e d i t  car ry fo rwards .  Deferred tax  assets and l i a b i l i t i e s  are measured us ing enacted tax  ra tes expected t o  
app ly  t o  taxable income in  t h e  years i n  w h i c h  those  temporary  d i f fe rences  are expected to  be recovered o r  set t led.  
The e f f e c t  o n  de fer red  t a x  assets and l i a b i l i t i e s  o f  a change i n  t a x  ra tes i s  recognized i n  income i n  the per iod  t h a t  
inc ludes  t h e  e n a c t m e n t  da te .  

A d v e r t i s i n g  Costs - Adver t i s ing  costs are expensed a s  incurred.  For t h e  years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, 
adver t i s ing  expense a m o u n t e d  t o  approx imate ly  $28,821,000 and $25,918,0OO, respect ive ly .  Adver t i s ing  expense i n  
2000 and 1999 re la tes  m a i n l y  t o  t h e  media campaign  f o r  the  l o n g  d is tance te lephone business. 

P 

Proper ty  and equ ipment ,  n e t  as o f  December 31, 2000 and 1999 consis t  o f  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  

2000 1999 
Est imated 

Usefu l  l ives 

Land 
B u i l d i n g  and improvements  
Telecommunicat ions e q u i p m e n t  
O f f i c e  equ ipment  and s o f t w a r e  
Furn i tu re  and f i x t u r e s  

$732,700 
3.1 66,703 

20,040,497 
1,996,676 

234,847 

$732,700 
2,484,9 71 

12,427,100 
1,650,241 

220,340 

7 - 4 0  years 
5-10 years 

4 - 5  years 
7-10 years 

26,171,423 17,51 5,352 
Less accumula ted  deprecra t ion  (9,034,337) (6,468,728) 

Proper ty  and equ ipment ,  n e t  $17,137,086 $11,046,624 
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Depreciat ion expense f o r  t h e  years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 amounted t o  approx imate ly  $2,571,000 and 
$2,107,000, respect ively 
$929,000 and &7@&QQ4 respect ively,  o f  deprec ia t ion  expense related t o  services. rendered d u r i n g  t h e  year. The 
te lecommunica t ions  equcpment owned by  the  Company I S  subject  t o  rap id  techno log ica l  obsolescence; therefore,  i t  i s  
reasonably possible t h a t  t h e  equipment 's es t imated  useful  l i v e s  cou ld  change i n  the  near fu tu re .  

For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, cost o f  sales includes approximately 

On March  31, 1993, t h e  Company entered i n t o  an agreement w i t h  Americasky Corpora t ion  ("Americasky")  t o  provide f o r  
the  opera t ion  a n d  main tenance o f  t h e  Company's te lecommunica t ion  f a c i l i t i e s  given t h a t  Americasky owns the  Federal 
Communica t ions  Commission l icense t o  operate a common carr ier  r a d i o  fac i l i t y .  Americasky I S  a w h o l l y  owned subsidiary 
o f  t h e  Parent. The i n i t i a l  t e r m  o f  the  agreement i s  fo r  a per iod o f  10 years w i t h  c o n t i n u a l  sel f - renewing f ive-year 
intervals.  The agreement cal ls f o r  the: Company t o  ma in ta in  and operate i t s  fac i l i t i es ,  and Americasky, i n  t u r n ,  w i l l  lease 
said faci l i t ies,  i n  a d d i t i o n  t o  any required o f f i c e  and storage space. There w e r e  no amounts  ou ts tand ing  as o f  December 
31, 2000 and 1999 a s  a resu l t  o f  th is  agreement.  

E f fec t i ve  November 1995, t h e  Company entered i n t o  an agreement t o  p rov ide  Entel  access t o  t h e  I n t e r n e t  f o r  an i n i t i a l  
s t a r t - u p  fee plus a m o n t h l y  f i xed  fee. The agreement I S  ef fec t i ve  f o r  a one-year per iod  and renews automat ica l l y  f o r  
a d d i t i o n a l  and successive 1 2 - m o n t h  terms, p rov ided ne i ther  p a r t y  te rmina tes  i t  As  o f  December 31, 2000 and 1999, 
amounts  due f r o m  Entel  re la ted  t o  th is  agreement are approx imate ly  $422,000 and $1,008,000, respectively, wh ich  i s  
n e t t e d  i n  due t o  stockholder and related part ies.  

E f fec t i ve  February 1996, t h e  Company entered i n t o  another  agreement w i t h  Entel  whereby the  Company sells u n i t s  
(minutes) a long i t s  l i n k  w i t h  Entel t o  o t h e r  carr iers and vice versa. Revenue i s  generated f r o m  the  t r a f f i c  usage and 
f r o m  one c o u n t r y  t o  the  other.  Ef fect ive May 1998,  the  Company uses i t s  o w n  swi tch  t o  sel l  u n i t s  (versus re ly ing  on  
Entel)  on  a Least Cost Rout ing  ( " L C R " )  basis. Entel  i s  a major t e r m i n a t i n g  car r ie r  on  the  LCR system. A s  o f  December 
2000 and 1999, inc luded i n  due t o  stockholder and related part ies i s  a n e t  payable of approx imate ly  $667,000 and 
$9,910,000, respectively, re lated t o  th is  agreement.  

A lso inc luded i n  due t o  stockholder and re la ted  part ies a s  of  December 31, 2000 and 1999 is a payable amount ing  t o  
approx imate ly  $299,000 and $692,000, respect ively,  re lated t o  an agreement w i t h  Entel whereby the  Company pays a 
f i xed  m o n t h l y  charge f o r  t h e  usage o f  t h e  t e l e c o m m u n i c a t i o n / s a t e l l i t e  l i n k  be tween the  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  and Chile. 

low I 

31, 

E f fec t i ve  May 30, 1997, t h e  Company entered i n t o  var ious agreements w i t h  Gadol and cer ta in  related part ies whereby 
those en t i t ies  p rov ide  spokesperson and endorsement services t o  t h e  Company, g r a n t  cer ta in  licenses and a s s i s t  i n  
developing p r o m o t i o n a l  and marke t ing  mater ia ls.  The i n i t i a l  t e r m  o f  the  agreements i s  th ree  years. As considerat ion for 
t h e  a fo rement ioned services, the  Company agreed t o  pay Gadol $1,750,000 and o t h e r  related e n t i t i e s  $1,750,000 f o r  each 
year d u r i n g  t h e  three-year term. For t h e  years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, t h e  Company expensed approx imate ly  
$3,500,000, i n  connect ion  w i t h  the  a fo rement ioned agreements.. Amounts  due t o  related part ies i n  connect ion  w i t h  these 
agreements amounted t o  approx imate ly  $370,000 and $360,000 a t  December 31 ,  2000 and 1999, respectively. 

O n  February 1, 1998, t h e  Company entered i n t o  a l icensing agreement w i t h  Entel  whereby the  Company was gran ted  the  
r i g h t  t o  use cer ta in  so f tware  developed by  Entel.  The agreement is e f fec t i ve  f o r  a two-year  per iod  and renews 
automat ica l l y  f o r  a d d i t i o n a l  and successive 1 2 - m o n t h  terms, provided ne i ther  p a r t y  te rmina tes  it. I n  2000, the  Company 
entered i n t o  a s im i la r  l i cens ing  agreement f o r  an upgrade o f  t h e  software.  The Company pa id  approx imate ly  $230,000 in  
1999 t o  Entel  re la ted  t o  these agreements. 



I n  t h e  normal  course o f  business, the  Company provides te lecommunica t ion  services t o  cer ta in  a f f i l i a tes .  As o f  
December 31, 2000 and 1999, the  Company had receivables f rom these a f f i l i a t e s  a m o u n t i n g  t o  approx imate ly  
$328,000 and $287,000, respectively. Add i t iona l l y ,  a s  o f  December 31, 2000 and 1999, the  Company had ou ts tand ing  
payables a m o u n t i n g  t o  approx imate ly  $7,679,000 and $ 3 ~  65,000, respectively, f o r  services provided t o  the  Company 
by a f f i l i a t e s  

As of December 31, 2000, t h e  Company had ne t  opera t ing  loss car ry fo rwards  o f  approx imate ly  $31,521,000. These 
amounts  can be used to  reduce f u t u r e  income a s  provided f o r  under  I n t e r n a l  Revenue Code Sect ion 3 8 2  described 
below. Such tax-loss carryovers expire a s  f o l l o w s  subject  t o  t h e  l i m i t a t i o n  n o t e d  be low:  

Year e n d i n g  
December 31, 

A m o u n t  
$ 

201 0 
201 1 
201 2 
201 8 
201 9 

2,808,000 
4,860,000 
5,733,000 

16,644,000 
1,476,000 

Tota l  31 ,521,000 

I n  July 1996, a d d i t i o n a l  shares o f  stock o f  the  Company were  t ransferred t o  Entel.  Under t h e  provis ions o f  In te rna l  
Revenue Code Sect ion 382 ,  th is  t ransfer resul ted i n  an ownership change due t o  Entel's greater - than 50 percent 
increase i n  stock ownership w i t h i n  a three-year per iod.  Once an ownership change is deemed t o  have occurred under 
Sect ion 3 8 2 ,  a l i m i t a t i o n  o n  the  annual  u t i l i z a t i o n  of n e t  opera t ing  loss carryovers is imposed. As a resul t  o f  the  
1996 ownership change, the  u t i l i z a t i o n  o f  t h e  Company's pre-July 1996 n e t  opera t ing  losses i s  l t m i t e d  t o  a maximum 
o f  approx imate ly  $1,606,000 annual ly t h r o u g h  t h e i r  exp i ra t ion  date.  If another  ownership change should occur i n  the  
fu tu re ,  t h e  tax- loss carryovers p r io r  t o  the  change i n  ownership m a y  be f u r t h e r  l i m i t e d  under the  provis ions o f  
Sect ion 3 8 2 .  

As o f  December 31,  2000 and 1999, the  Company had n o  deferred t a x  a s s e t  o r  l i a b i l i t y  re f lec ted  on  i t s  f inanc ia l  
s ta tements  since t h e  de fer red  t a x  asset a t t r i b u t a b l e  t o  t h e  n e t  opera t ing  loss i s  comple te ly  o f f s e t  by  t h e  va lua t ion  
al lowance, due t o  t h e  u n c e r t a i n t y  regarding t h e  a b i l i t y  o f  the  Company t o  generate f u t u r e  taxable income s u f f i c i e n t  
t o  u t i l i z e  the  tax- loss  carryovers 



! 

Leases - The Company i s  ob l iga ted  under var ious noncancelable opera t ing  and cap i ta l  leases exp i r ing  t h r o u g h  the  year 
2012 f o r  var ious equ ipment  used i n  re la t ion  t o  t h e  operat ions of t h e  Company. 

The f o l l o w i n g  i s  a schedule o f  f u t u r e  m i n i m u m  lease payments under t h e  terms o f  noncancelable opera t ing  and cap i ta l  
leases as  o f  December 31, 2000: 

Year e n d i n g  
December 31, 

Future M i n i m u m  
Lease Payments 

O p e r a t i n g  C a p i t a l  
teases Leases . 

$ $ 

2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 and therea f te r  

31 3,000 329,000 
303,000 267,000 
303,000 47,000 
303,000 

2,423,000 I 

- 

3,645,000 643,000 T o t a l  m in imum lease payments  
Less: a m o u n t  represent ing in te res t  (1 3 1,000) 

51 2,000 Total o b l i g a t i o n  under c a p i t a l  l e a s e s  
Less: cur ren t  m a t u r i t i e s  (3 15,000) 

Long-term ob l iga t ions  under  cap i ta l  l e a s e s  197,000 

Rent expense f o r  t h e  years ended December 31 ,  2000 and 1999 amounted to  approx imate ly  $367,000 and $231,000, 
respectively. 

L i t i g a t i o n  - The Company i s  subject  t o  cer ta in  lega l  proceedings and claims w h i c h  arise i n  t h e  normal  course o f  i t s  
business. In  the  o p i n i o n  o f  Company management,  there  i s  no  pend ing  or  th rea tened l i t i g a t i o n  wh ich  w i l l  have a 
mater ia l  e f f e c t  o n  the  Company's f inanc ia l  pos i t ion  or  results o f  operat ions.  

On July 1, 1996, t h e  Company establ ished a savings plan ( t h e  "Plan") under  Sec t ion  401(k) o f  the  I n t e r n a l  Revenue 
Code. The Plan al lows e l ig ib le  employees t o  c o n t r i b u t e  up  t o  1 5  percent  o f  t h e i r  compensat ion on a p re- tax  basis. 
The Company matches 100 percent o f  the  f i r s t  $1,000 and 2 5  percent o f  t h e  n e x t  $4,000 an employee cont r ibu tes  l o  
the  Plan. The max imum the Company w i l l  c o n t r i b u t e  t o  the  Plan per employee is $2,000 per p lan  year. Company 
c o n t r i b u t i o n s  are vested inc rementa l l y  over th ree  years. The charge t o  opera t ions  f o r  the  Company's match ing  
c o n t r i b u t i o n  was approx imate ly  $71,000 and $27,000 i n  2000 and 1999, respect ively.  

I '  

I I  
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AMERICATEL CORPORATION 
Application for a Certificate of Public Convenience 

aiid Necessity to Operate Public Utility Service 

EXHIBIT E 

STATEMENT OF SUFFICIENT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY 

Americatel Corporation is a telecommunications company that has been in business since 1992 
providing interexchange services to the Hispanic market in the United States. As indicated in the 
audited financial statements attached hereto, the Company eamed in 2002, $266 inillion in gross 
revenues. 

1. Americatel has sufficient financial capability to provide competitive local 
exchange services in Florida. This capability is evidenced by the financial 
resources and other assets set forth in Americatel’s audited financial statements 
for 2000,2001 and 2002. 

2. Americatel will maintain the Competitive local exchange services that it plans to 
provide in Florida through the revenues that it will generate through its operations 
and through the sale of service to new customers. This capability is evidenced by 
the financial resources and other assets set foi-th in Arneiicatel’s audited financial 
statements for 2000, 2001 and 2002. 

3.  Americatel has sufficient financial capability to meet its payment obligations for 
operating and capital leases as it has always done. This capability is evidenced by 
the financial resources and other assets set forth in Americatel’s audited financial 
statements for 2000,2001 and 2002. 
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